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- CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr Chen Ying-Chieh (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 27 January 2011)
Mr Chen Hsien Min (Managing Director)
(re-designated as Non-executive Director
and Vice-chairman on 27 January 2011)
Mr Chen Tommy Yi-Hsun (appointed on 31 December 2011)
Mr Chang Chih-Kai
Mr Chang Chih-Chiao

Non-executive Directors

Mr Chen Hsien Min (Vice-chairman)
(appointed on 27 January 2011 and resigned
on 31 December 2011)

Mr Kim Jin-Goon (appointed on 13 April 2011)

Ms Ma Xuezheng (resigned on 13 April 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Hsiao Hsi-Ming (resigned on 1 September 2011)
Mr Huang Shun-Tsai

Mr Kuo Jung-Cheng

Mr Lee Ted Tak Tai (appointed on 1 September 2011)

Alternate Directors
Mr Kim Jin-Goon (Alternate Director to Ms Ma Xuezheng)
(resigned on 13 April 2011)

Mr Lau Wai Kei, Ricky (Alternate Director to Mr Kim Jin-Goon)

(appointed on 13 April 2011)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr Hsiao Hsi-Ming (Chairman) (resigned on 1 September 2011)
Mr Lee Ted Tak Tai (Chairman) (appointed on 1 September 2011)

Mr Huang Shun-Tsai

Mr Kim Jin-Goon (appointed on 13 April 2011)
Mr Kuo Jung-Cheng

Ms Ma Xuezheng (resigned on 13 April 2011)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr Kuo Jung-Cheng (Chairman)

Mr Chen Hsien Min (resigned on 31 December 2011)
Mr Chen Ying-Chieh (appointed on 31 December 2011)
Mr Hsiao Hsi-Ming (resigned on 1 September 2011)
Mr Huang Shun-Tsai

Mr Kim Jin-Goon (appointed on 13 April 2011)

Mr Lee Ted Tak Tai (appointed on 1 September 2011)
Ms Ma Xuezheng (resigned on 13 April 2011)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr Huang Shun-Tsai (Chairman)

Mr Chen Ying-Chieh

Mr Hsiao Hsi-Ming (resigned on 1 September 2011)
Mr Kim Jin-Goon (appointed on 13 April 2011)

Mr Kuo Jung-Cheng

Mr Lee Ted Tak Tai (appointed on 1 September 2011)
Ms Ma Xuezheng (resigned on 13 April 2011)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms Chan Oi Chu

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr Chen Hsien Min (resigned on 27 January 2011)
Mr Chen Ying-Chieh (appointed on 27 January 2011)
Ms Chan Oi Chu

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

17th Floor, Fung House

19-20 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2367 9021
Fax: (852) 2311 3170

OPERATIONAL HEADQUARTER

3908 Hu Qing Ping Road
Zhao Xiang Town

Qingpu County

Shanghai, China

Telephone: (86) 21 3976 2468
Fax: (86) 21 5975 2698

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Tricor Secretaries Limited

26th Floor, Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China

China Construction Bank Corporation

First Sino Bank

Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Limited

CORPORATE WEBSITES

http://www.daphneholdings.com
http://www.daphne.com.cn
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL A B 28
HIGHLIGHTS

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE % B
For the year ended 31 December
BET-H=1—HILEE
2011 2010
T
Turnover (HK$’ million) BEH (A EB D) 8,576.8 6,623.8
Gross profit (HK$’ million) EH (H &) 5,243.8 3,800.8
Gross profit margin (%) EF (%) 61.1 57.4
Operating profit (HK$” million) (Note 1) KERA (T &) (k) 1,368.6 971.7
Operating profit margin (%) KB B 2(%) 16.0 14.7
Profit attributable to owners of the Company EN/NGIE XEDN g
(HK$’ million) (A #E®IL) 933.1 595.5
Net profit margin (%) S 22(%) 10.9 9.0
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) B B A R (RS Al 56.96 36.36
Dividend per share (HK cents) g B G AL 17.0 12.0
KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS FERMBHRE
For the year ended 31 December
BRETHA=Z+—HILEE
2011 2010
e
Average inventory turnover (days) (Note 2) BB (H) (B EE2) 172 128
Average debtors turnover (days) (Note 3) %iﬁﬁgqﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ ( H (Pt 5E3) 10 11
Average creditors turnover (days) (Note 4) 4 REAT BRAE B (H) (Bt 5E4) 68 69
Cash conversion cycle (days) (Note 5) REMEKE(H) (F5ES) 114 70
Capital expenditure (HK$’ million) (Note 6) A B S (F s o) (K ske) 393.7 281.3
Effective tax rate (%) (Note 7) HHRBLA (%) (HFEET7) 26.7 25.7
As at 31 December
B+_A=+—H
2011 2010
—F 8 —“F-FF
Cash and bank balances (HK$’ million) (Note 8) Bl 4 K SRAT 8% (77 s oc) (K3E8) 1,795.7 2,059.7
Bank loan (HKS$’ million) S|ATE K (AT 7.0 11.3
Convertible bonds (HK$’ million) R (A BT 605.9 556.6
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AN T HEA N AL RE 4R
(HK$’ million) (A & IT) 4,035.9 3,124.3
Current ratio (times) (Note 9) B LE) R () (B 5E9) 3.1 3.4
Net gearing ratio (%) (Note 10) T A (%) (B EE10) Net cash#¥ Bl 4 Net cashiF 5l 4
Daphne International Holdings Limited 4
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL
HIGHLIGHTS

Notes:

1.

10.

Operating profit represented profit before fair value loss on warrants, finance

costs, share of profit of an associated company and income tax expense.

The calculation of average inventory turnover (days) is based on the average of
opening and closing inventory balances divided by cost of sales and multiplied
by 365 days.

The calculation of average debtors turnover (days) is based on the average
of opening and closing balances of trade receivables divided by turnover and
multiplied by 365 days.

The calculation of average creditors turnover (days) is based on the average
of opening and closing balances of trade payables divided by purchases and

multiplied by 365 days.

The calculation of cash conversion cycle (days) is based on average inventory
turnover (days) plus average debtors turnover (days) minus average creditors
turnover (days).

Capital expenditure comprises acquisition of land use rights and fixed assets
and cash expenditure on license rights.

Effective tax rate is calculated based on income tax expense divided by profit
before income tax excluding fair value loss on warrants, impairment loss on
available-for-sale financial assets and director’s discretionary bonus totalling
HKS$91.9 million (2010: HK$77.3 million).

Cash and bank balances comprise cash and cash equivalents and bank deposit
with maturity over three months.

The calculation of current ratio (times) is based on the total current assets

divided by total current liabilities as at 31 December.

The calculation of net gearing ratio (%) is based on net debt (being total of
bank loan and convertible bonds, less total cash and bank balances) divided by
equity attributable to owners of the Company as at 31 December.
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL A B 28
HIGHLIGHTS

Group Turnover Analysis for the year ended 31 December

BET A= H IR B AR GBI E R

2011 2010
SR —F-®F
Core Brands Business Other Brands Business OEM Business
1 o i R Al R JER % A 5k S s
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2011, Daphne International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) continued
to perform well. The Group’s turnover was HK$8,576.8 million, 29%
higher than last year. The Group’s gross profit margin increased to
61.1%, from 57.4% last year. Net margin increased to 10.9%, leading
to the net profit (if excluded fair value loss on warrants) increased by
39% to HK$933.1 million.

The positive performance was attributed to the healthy growth of our
core brands, both “Daphne” and “Shoebox”, which was facilitated by
the rationalisation of the supply chain, enhanced product design and
planning, and more sophisticated and targeted marketing programmes.
These efforts also led to strong sales and same store sales growth.
Our focus on increasing our market share and broadening our network
coverage further contributed to the strong results, with the Group’s
network covering 6,165 points-of-sale in total, as at 31 December
2011.

Subsequent to the year end, Daphne ranked as the top brand of ladies’
shoes in a national survey, “China Brand Power Index”, conducted by
the China Brand Research Centre, as commissioned by the Ministry of
Industrial and Information Technology of the Chinese Government. In
earning the same honour from such a reputable and independent survey
for two consecutive years (2011 and 2012), “Daphne” has become an
invaluable brand asset that the Group will continue to develop and

leverage to broaden our customer base.

Looking ahead, we will continue to expand our retail network to
capitalise on the growing economy of Mainland China. Focus will
remain on our core brands business, “Daphne” and “Shoebox”.
By leveraging on our strong fundamentals, the Group will take the
initiative to diversify, and therefore will seek prudent development
of our mid- to high-end brand portfolio. We will also strive to further
enhance the operational efficiency on all fronts, including optimisation
of the supply chain, more dedicated sales operations management,
more specialised channel management, strengthening our brand
management capacity, refining our product design and planning, as

well as broadening our marketing reach.

Our management team now is equipped with varied expertise and
solid experience, and plays an instrumental role in driving all-round
advancement of the Group. Together with various systems and
measures that we introduced to drive progress, I expect the benefits
from such investments and efforts will steadily be realised and

reflected in the Group’s future performance.
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- CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

With our vision of becoming a leading brand management company
that provides customers with trendsetting and quality products, we
will continue to pursue growth strategies that include increasing
market share by strengthening our core brands business; seeking
further market penetration through brand and product extension; and
diversifying, in terms of brands, products, prices and sales channels to
reach out to much broader market segments. Through such measures,
we will endeavour to continue expanding and capturing growing

market opportunities in China and the region.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, I would like to express my heartfelt gratitude
to Messrs Chen Hsien Min and Hsiao Hsi-Ming for their valuable
contributions to the Group over the years. In particular, Mr Chen
Hsien Min, as one of the founders of the Group, has dedicated more
than 23 years to developing the company and building the foundation
on which the Group has grown, and will further grow in the future. I
would also like to welcome Mr Lee Ted Tak Tai who joined the Board
as an Independent Non-executive Director in September 2011. With
his extensive experience in finance and auditing, I am confident that he

will contribute significantly to the Group’s ongoing development.

Sincere gratitude must certainly be extended to all our stakeholders,
including the management team, our employees, business partners,
customers and shareholders for their trust and continuous support of

the Group.

Chen Ying-Chieh
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 19 March 2012
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

CORE BRANDS BUSINESS

The economy in China remained strong in 2011, with GDP growth
of over 9%. The stimulus policies of the Chinese government raised
income levels and encouraged domestic consumption. Ongoing
urbanisation further fuelled retail market expansion and boosted
consumption amongst both the urban and sub-urban population.
Amid a robust market environment in 2011, the Group’s core brands,
“Daphne” and “Shoebox”, both achieved impressive performance
in Mainland China. Turnover of core brands business increased by
approximately 35% to HK$7,671.1 million from HK$5,696.6 million
in 2010. Several factors played a role in driving the increase in
turnover. The retail network continued to expand with a net increase
of 700 points-of-sale. Enhanced product design and planning, as well
as strengthened marketing efforts made our products more attractive
and appealing. More efficient supply chain management, together with
steady inventory supply, led to improved sales in the spring/summer
season, and continued to facilitate strong sales growth in the second
half of the year. As improvements in various aspects were made to
drive better operational efficiency and boost sales, these concerted
efforts were reflected in the strong same store sales growth. Turnover
growth was driven by increase in both average selling price and

volume, reflecting a growing customer base.

Gross profit margin reached 61.9%, with an increase of 2.3 percentage
points, reflecting enhanced operational efficiency and more balanced
sales growth. Operating margin also increased to 20.3% from 17.7%
in 2010, despite the increase in rental pressure and rising labour costs

during the year.

The “Brand Revamp” programme for “Daphne” launched in the fourth
quarter of 2010, including the introduction of a new logo and new store
design, and an uplift of the marketing program, continued to roll out in
2011. The programme has linked “Daphne” with a refreshing, friendly
and joyful image. It was well received by the market and helped
contribute to higher store traffic and sales during the year. During
the year, “Shoebox” continued its fast pace of network expansion
by adding stores at areas where “Daphne” has strong presence, as
well in new areas. As at 31 December 2011, the Group had 4,547
directly-managed points-of-sale (2010: 3,918) and 1,055 (2010: 984)

franchised outlets for its core brands business.

OTHER BRANDS BUSINESS

Other brands business mostly refers to the operation of mid- to high-
end brands, including own-brands and licensed brands, in Mainland
China, Taiwan and Hong Kong. The brand portfolio, mainly consisting
of “AEE”, “Ameda”, “dulala”, “ALDO”, and “Aerosoles”, represents

the Group’s initiative to diversify and broaden its reach to the
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

growing middle-class consumers group, and continue to serve those
“Daphne” customers who have grown to become more discerning and
sophisticated. For the year ended 31 December 2011, turnover of other
brands business was HK$529.6 million (2010: HK$430.3 million).

The Group completed the integration of the acquired business of
Full Pearl, and enriched its brand portfolio during the year. Among
the brands, “dulala”, our own-label, was introduced in 2011, and
the Group launched “Aerosoles” and “ALDO”, two licensed brands,
in Mainland China as well. Focus was put on building an extensive
retail network to increase its market presence. The Group allocated
resources to bolster the brand management capability since the
fourth quarter of the year, with the aim of improving the operational
efficiency and brand building, thus paving the way for enhanced
performance in future. As at 31 December, 2011, the Group had 563
points-of-sale (2010: 297) for its other brands business.

MANUFACTURING BUSINESS

To provide greater production support to the expanding core brands
business, during the year the manufacturing business continued
to adjust its allocation of production capacity as to reduce the
volume produced for OEM orders. In addition to shifting more
capacity to produce core brands products from its OEM facility, the
manufacturing business also sought to increase its overall production
capacity to provide stronger support to the growing core brands

business.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results Performance

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group’s turnover increased
by 29% to HK$8,576.8 million (2010: HK$6,623.8 million) while
operating profit (being profit before fair value loss on warrants,
finance costs, share of profit of an associated company and income tax
expense) increased by 41% to HK$1,368.6 million (2010: HK$971.7
million). Profit attributable to shareholders was HK$933.1 million
(2010: HK$595.5 million), including the fair value loss on warrants
of HK$77.3 million recognised in 2010, increased by 57%. Basic
earnings per share was HK56.96 cents (2010: HK36.36 cents). The
Board recommended payment of a final dividend of HK9.0 cents
(2010: HK6.0 cents) per share for the year ended 31 December 2011.
Including interim dividend of HK8.0 cents (2010: HK6.0 cents)
per share, total dividend per share for 2011 is HK17.0 cents (2010:
HK12.0 cents), representing an increase of 42% compared to last year.
Total dividend payout is 30% (2010: 29%, based on EPS excluding fair

value loss on warrants).
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The business performance of individual segments for the year ended B E T A = — H IR ER R

31 December is summarised as follows: SZIR/
Manufacturing
Core Brands Business Other Brands Business Business
AN ES oAl i R HEEHK
HKS$’ million 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
H BT TR R g DR ZF R DR -8 5 %E
Revenue from external customers MK Pl 7,597.1 5,646.5 529.6 409.7 450.2 567.6
Inter-segment revenue I3 BRI 4R 74.0 50.0 - 20.6 1,003.1 594.5
Total segment revenue b A AR 7,671.1 5,696.5 529.6 4303 1,453.3 1,162.1
Segment gross profit A ER 4,747.4 3,397.8 315.1 224.1 203.4 180.0
Segment operating profit/(loss) NS ERH,/ (BH) 1,555.1 1,006.2 (64.6) 0.1) 108.1 51.6
Liquidity and Financial Resources Wi B B B B R IR

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the Group has a
healthy net cash position. Cash and bank balances, comprised of
cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits with maturity over three
months, was HK$1,795.7 million (2010: HK$2,059.7 million). The
net decrease of HK$264.0 million (2010: net increase of HK$433.9

million) is analysed as follows:

e K S N & [ Bl = I e e i Sy |
:+— H o> ARSEEFEA R0 BRI - Bld K&

1745 8 (ELHE B4 R B4 56 W) ~ A7 3 i an —
1@1)%25& TAFE) F51,795.7H Es s (&4
2,059.7H & ¥ o0) o WD 12640 & T (&
A RINA33.9F BT A ¢

2011 2010
e
HK$’ million HKS$’ million
HEWBT EE Y

Net cash generated from operating activities A ZETS I A B & VR AR 242.6 892.3
Capital expenditure AR B S (393.7) (281.3)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets B [ R T 1S KT 2.2 4.1
Net dividend paid O A 2 i A (234.2) (183.8)
Net bank loan repaid TR AT P (4.0) (34.0)
Net cash flow from acquisition of WA A R ) e LA A

subsidiaries and other investment 2R &R 30.3) (32.3)
Net interest received E WR B A 40.9 16.5
Proceeds from issue of shares upon A7 A8 8 R T A M

exercise of share options Z A% R OA 19.0 -
Effect of exchange rate changes A1 56, 4t 28 5 W) 2 5 %5 93.5 52.4

(264.0) 433.9

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had unutilised banking facilities
amounting to HK$173.6 million (2010: HK$214.9 million) and current
ratio (being current assets divided by current liabilities) was 3.1
(2010: 3.4). The Group has sufficient resources currently to support

expansion and development of business in the future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

To maximise the return on idle liquid resources, the Group placed
a number of principal-protected structured deposits with registered
banks in Mainland China. The interest income earned for the year was
HK$63.1 million (2010: HK$37.1 million), being 1.7 times the amount

of last year.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s net gearing, calculated on the
basis of net debt (being total bank loans and convertible bonds less
total cash and bank balances) over shareholders’ equity, was in a net
cash (2010: net cash) position. All bank loans were at floating rates

during the year.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group did not engage in any foreign exchange derivatives during
the year (2010: nil). Management closely monitors the market situation
and may consider tools to manage foreign exchange risk whenever

necessary.

Pledge of Assets
As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, no assets were
pledged as security for banking facilities of the Group.

Capital Expenditure

During the year, the Group incurred a capital expenditure of HK$393.7
million (2010: HK$281.3 million) mainly for retail network expansion
and renovation, purchase and construction of regional warehouse and

offices, etc.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the Group had no

significant contingent liabilities.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had over 25,000 (2010: 23,000)
employees in Mainland China, Taiwan, Hong Kong and Korea.
Employee and directors’ expenditure for the year, including share-
based payment expense of HK$46.1 million (2010: 58.6 million),
amounted to HK$1,219.4 million (2010: HK$836.6 million). The
Group values human resources and recognises the importance
of retaining high calibre employees. Remuneration packages
are generally structured by reference to market terms and the
qualifications of individual employees. In addition, share options
and discretionary bonuses are granted to eligible employees based
on the performance of the Group and the individual employee. The
Group also provides mandatory provident fund schemes, medical
insurance schemes, staff purchase discounts and training programmes
to employees.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

PROSPECTS

China will continue to see a relative high economic growth in 2012,
as compared to developed markets, with its GDP expected to grow
at 7.5%. As the Chinese government carries on its measures to drive
growth led by domestic consumption, along with the wage increase,
and accelerated urbanisation, we believe the retail market will

continue to grow steadily.

Looking ahead, the Group remains committed to expanding its
presence in Mainland China to capitalise the vast potential of this
growing market. We aim to add 700 points-of-sale for our core brands,
“Daphne” and “Shoebox”, in 2012, and maintain strategic focus on

establishing directly-managed points-of-sale over franchised outlets.

According to a national survey “China Brand Power Index”
conducted by the China Brand Research Centre and commissioned
by the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of the
Chinese government, “Daphne” ranked as the top brand in the
ladies’ shoes category for two consecutive years (2011 and 2012).
This comprehensive survey involved 30 cities in Mainland China.
Therefore the award showcases the strong brand equity and leading
market status “Daphne” enjoys. The Group will continue to build
on this strong platform to elevate the performance of “Daphne” and

extend its strength to its brand portfolio.

The Group will seek continuous improvement in various functions
to enhance operational efficiency and bolster sales. Efforts will
include strengthening product development and planning, employing
integrated marketing efforts, optimising the supply chain, developing
greater specialisation of sales operation and channel management, and

enhancing dedicated brand management.

As an initiative to diversify by leveraging the Group’s solid
fundamentals, the development of the mid- to high-end brand portfolio
presents an opportunity to tap the growing middle class in China. The
Group will make every endeavour to enhance the performance of this
business segment expects to start bearing fruit as brand management

strategies begin to effect.

Underpinning all of the above efforts is a highly experienced
management team that has been made even stronger. As this team
seeks to refine every facet of operation and leverage the Group’s
competitive advantages, we are confident that the Group will realise
steady progress in capitalising the promising retail market in China,

and continue to deliver value to shareholders.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr CHEN Ying-Chieh, aged 42, is the Chairman and was appointed
as the Chief Executive Officer of the Group on 27 January 2011. Mr
Chen is responsible for the overall corporate and business strategic
planning of the Group. Mr Chen obtained a bachelor’s degree in
International Trade Business from the University of Zhengyou. He
has been working with the Group since 1992. Mr Chen is a cousin of
Mr Chang Chih-Kai, Mr Chang Chih-Chiao and Mr Chen Tommy Yi-

Hsun, all executive directors of the Company.

Mr CHANG Chih-Kai, aged 31, joined the Group since 2003 with
focus on product development and general management. He has
studied a bachelor’s degree of Art in Auckland University after
graduated from Pakuranga College in New Zealand. Mr Chang is the
brother of Mr Chang Chih-Chiao, a cousin of Mr Chen Ying-Chieh and
Mr Chen Tommy Yi-Hsun.

Mr CHANG Chih-Chiao, aged 29, joined the Group in 2007 and is
currently primarily responsible for specialised business projects and
negotiations. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in Visual Communication
from the Northumbria University in the United Kingdom. Mr Chang is
the brother of Mr Chang Chih-Kai, a cousin of Mr Chen Ying-Chieh and
Mr Chen Tommy Yi-Hsun.

Mr CHEN Tommy Yi-Hsun, aged 30, joined the Group in 2004 with
focus on planning and management of the Group’s manufacturing
business. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Chen worked in footwear
trading and manufacturing companies where he had over 8 years of
experience. Mr Chen graduated from the University of Victoria in
Canada with a bachelor’s degree in Arts. Mr Chen is a cousin of Mr
Chen Ying-Chieh, Mr Chang Chih-Kai and Mr Chang Chih-Chiao.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr KIM Jin-Goon, aged 44, was appointed as a non-executive
director on 13 April 2011. Mr Kim is a partner of TPG Capital,
Limited (“TPG”), a leading global private investment firm and an
affiliate of Premier China, Limited (“Premier China”), which has
substantial interests in the shares, convertible bonds and warrants of
the Company. Mr Kim leads TPG’s Operating Group in Greater China.
From 2007 to 2011, he was an executive director and the interim chief
executive officer and he is currently the vice-chairman of the board of
China Grand Automotive Service Co., Ltd. and built China’s leading
passenger car retail and service network. As a director of the board, Mr
Kim led the turnaround of UniTrust Finance & Leasing Corporation,
a leading capital equipment leasing company in China. Mr Kim was
previously an alternate director to Ms Ma Xuezheng, a non-executive

director of the Company who resigned on 13 April 2011, and has led
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

TPG’s operational initiatives to help transform the Company’s core
operations and pioneer industry’s first fast retail business model.
Prior to joining TPG, Mr Kim worked for Dell Inc. as the Managing
Director of its Korea business from 2002 to 2006. Prior to that from
2000 to 2002, Mr Kim was the vice president of Internet Business
Capital Corporation in Cambridge, Massachusetts, and from 1996 to
2000, he was the engagement manager at McKinsey & Company. Mr
Kim received his undergraduate degree in Arts majored in Government
and East Asian Studies from Harvard University with High Honors,
conducted post graduate research in Nanjing-Hopkins Centre in China,
and returned to Harvard University to pursue his master of Public

Policy.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HUANG Shun-Tsai, aged 58, is a director of six technology
companies in Taiwan. He has been active in the technology field
for over 15 years. Mr Huang was appointed as an independent non-

executive director of the Company in 2001.

Mr KUO Jung-Cheng, aged 61, is a director of a manufacturing and
distribution company in China. Mr Kuo is a former senator of the
Legislative House in Taiwan. He has been serving the community in
Taiwan as a representative for over 10 years. Mr Kuo holds an MBA
degree from the University of Hawaii. Mr Kuo was appointed as an

independent non-executive director of the Company in 2001.

Mr LEE Ted Tak Tai, aged 61, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1 September 2011. Mr Lee is the
managing director of T Plus Capital Limited which is engaged in the
provision of strategic, financial and business development advisory
services. Currently Mr Lee is an independent non-executive director
and the audit committee chairman of Boshiwa International Holding
Limited, a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, an independent director and the audit committee chairman of
China Ming Yang Wind Power Group Limited, a company listed on
U.S. New York Exchange, and an independent director and the audit
committee chairman of Tudou Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the National Association of Securities Dealers Automated Quotations.
Mr Lee is a certified public accountant and he has extensive experience
in auditing and accounting sectors and he was a senior partner at
Deloitte where he worked for over 30 years both in United States and
Asia. Mr Lee graduated from California State University, Fresno with
a bachelor’s degree in Accounting and obtained a MBA degree from

University of Southern California.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ALTERNATE DIRECTOR

Mr LAU Wai Kei, Ricky, aged 42, was appointed as an alternate
director to Mr Kim Jin-Goon on 13 April 2011. Mr Lau is a partner
of TPG where he has over 14 years of experience in investment
transactions and he was designated by Premier China as its observer
on the board of directors of the Company. Mr Lau also serves as a
director of China Grand Auto Service Co., Ltd. Before joining TPG,
Mr Lau was responsible for the corporate and project finance division
of Hopewell Holdings Limited (“Hopewell”), a regional infrastructure
project developer. He joined Hopewell in 1993 and spearheaded
the development and financing of several power and transportation
projects in China, India and Thailand. Mr Lau obtained a Kellogg-
HKUST Executive MBA and graduated from the University of British
Columbia and he is a CFA charterholder.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms CHOU Wan Ching, Echo, aged 53, was appointed as the Chief
Human Resources Officer of the Group in February 2011. She is
responsible for the Group’s human resources management and office

administration.

Ms Chou has over 22 years of experience in human resources
management. Prior to joining the Group, Ms Chou held senior
management positions in various companies, including Yum!
Restaurant China, a leading telecommunication company and an
international bank in Taiwan. She graduated from the National Taiwan

University and holds a MBA degree from the Ottawa University.

Mr HU Huan Xin, Michael, aged 43, has been appointed as the
Chief Operating Officer since January 2010. He is responsible for the
Group’s supply chain management including production planning and

operations.

Mr Hu has over 21 years of experience in supply chain and production
management in China. Before joining the Group, Mr Hu worked in
various senior management positions with focus on supply chain
management for a number of international brands including Cadbury
Schweppes Co Ltd and Pepsico Inc. in the PRC. He graduated with a
bachelor’s degree in International Trade and Economics from the Sun
Yat-Sen University, in the PRC.

Ms HUANG Hui Chun, Juliette, aged 41, has been appointed as
the Chief Product Officer of the Group since September 2010. She is

responsible for the product design and management of the Group.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms Huang has over 17 years of experience in the fashion industry with
strong expertise in branding and product design. Prior to joining the
Group, she was the brand director of ETAM China, a European ready-
to-wear fashion brand with strong regional presence. She graduated at

the LISAA Ecole Superieure des Art Appliques in France.

Mr LIANG Sheuh Hvei, Allen, aged 49, joined the Group as the
Chief Strategy Officer in January 2012. He is responsible for leading
the strategic development of the Group and contributes in major

operational projects and decision making.

Mr Liang has over 22 years of experience in strategic development
and operational management of large corporations. Prior to joining the
Group, he was the Chief Operating Officer of Goodbaby International
Holdings Ltd., a leading manufacturer of durable baby care products
listed in Hong Kong. He was also the executive director, president
and chief executive officer of various companies in China. Mr Liang
was a professor in the School of Management in Tianjin University.
Mr Liang holds a Ph.D. from Nankai University, Tianjin, the PRC and
a master’s degree in Marketing from Webster University, the United
States.

Mr LIANG Hai Xuan, Michael, aged 40, has been the Chief
Information Officer of the Group since August 2011. He is responsible
for the information technology development and management of the

Group.

Mr Liang has over 17 years of experience in the information system
management with broad exposure in various international consumer
brands. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Liang held senior management
positions in various companies including a leading computer brand,
Canadian Broadcasting Corporation as well as Procter & Gamble
in Mainland China. Mr Liang holds a bachelor’s degree from the
Guangdong Industry University, the PRC.

Mr LIN Che Li, Jerry, aged 44, joined the Group as the Chief
Financial Officer in January 2010 and is responsible for the overall

corporate and financial planning of the Group.

Mr Lin has over 17 years of experience in financial planning and
management in an international environment. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr Lin spent almost 20 years with a leading U.S automotive
company, one of the top 10 companies on the FORTUNE 500 list,
including 15 years in the finance department. His financial and
operating experience included assignments at its treasury headquarters
in New York and Singapore as well as senior financial management
and CFO positions in Taipei, Seoul and Shanghai. Mr Lin holds an
MBA degree from Columbia Business School and a bachelor’s degree
in Electrical Engineering from the University of Rochester, in the

United States.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr LI Tao, Johnson, aged 45, joined the Group as the Chief
Development Officer in December 2010. He is responsible for the
planning and management of distribution network of the Group, and

managing the store construction and design team.

Mr Li has over 24 years of experience in channel development and
brand marketing management and is specialised in the market and
channel development of the consumer industry. Before joining the
Group, Mr Li held various senior management positions, including as
director, in some renowned international and local restaurant chains
in China. He holds a bachelor’s degree in Management of Industrial
Economics from the Shanghai University of Finance and Economics in
the PRC.

Ms LU Ying, Louisa, aged 44, has been appointed as the Chief
Marketing Officer of the Group since April 2010. She is responsible

for the strategic branding and marketing management of the Group.

Ms Lu has about 19 years of experience in brand development and
marketing. Ms Lu was a regional brand development director of
beverage in East Asia for a leading FMCG group, Unilever. She
was the head of marketing for various international brands in China
including Vichy of L’Oreal China, and Pizza Hut of Yum! Restaurant
China, an international restaurant group with strong presence in
China. Ms Lu holds a master’s degree from the Shanghai University of
Science & Technology in the PRC.

Mr SHIH Wen Che, Jonathan, aged 52, joined the Group as the Chief
Sales Officer in March 2012. He is responsible for sales operation

management of the Group.

Mr Shih has over 27 years of experience in sales and general
management in retail and service industries of which 15 years were
in Mainland China. Mr Shih held senior management positions of
different functions as well as regional general manager and general
manager of China positions with various multinational companies such
as City Chain, Pizza Hut, McDonald’s, 7-11, Starbucks and Burger

King. He graduated from the National Taiwan Ocean University.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. To enhance the overall management quality of the
Company, the Board has adopted corporate governance practices
with special emphasis on an effective Board for leadership and
control, sound business ethics and integrity in all business activities,
transparency and accountability to shareholders.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

Throughout the year, the Company has adopted and complied with
code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the ”Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”), except for the deviations
from Codes A.2.1 and A.4.1 of the Code. Details are stated under
“Chairman and Chief Executive” and “Appointments, Re-election and
Removal of Directors” on pages 20 and 21 respectively.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) as of the date of this report
consists of the following directors:

Jv

e gk e

AN R BN HER ROKHE 2 AR SR o BRTIALF
REEHER ERgCRAMRERWEHR . LR
BR A R B B AP R S B A
R RLAF P SEHR ST Kl AR - DA R 2 B W I
f F 1 -

A 36 5 16 W LA

WL RN RN — BT HBEHA LS
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EHY
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I

Date of first Nomination Remuneration Audit

Members of the Board becoming director Committee Committee Committee
HHEWE HRMEEHZ A REZHE HMZEG #RERE
Executive directors
HITEFH
Mr Chen Ying-Chieh 21 May 1996 v/ v/

(Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) —“MWAAELAZ+—H
RSN SE (LT AR
Mr Chen Tommy Yi-Hsun 31 December 2011
BRAG B SE 4 SR AZ
Mr Chang Chih-Kai 22 November 2004
RE I “EENEF A
Mr Chang Chih-Chiao 12 June 2009
REBELE “ELTNFEARATZH
Non-executive director
FUTEE
Mr Kim Jin-Goon 13 April 2011 v/ 4 4
YR EE “F-—FENA+=H
Independent non-executive directors
B HATESE
Mr Huang Shun-Tsai 31 July 2001 v/ 4 4
paiEipes “EE-FEA=1—H
Mr Kuo Jung-Cheng 31 July 2001 v/ v/ 4
AR “EE-FEA=1—H
Mr Lee Ted Tak Tai 1 September 2011 v/ v/ 4
BRSNS “E-—FNA—H
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The executive directors draw on a rich and diverse experience from the
footwear distribution business while the non-executive director and the
independent non-executive directors possess appropriate professional
qualifications and management expertise. Each independent non-
executive director gives the Company an annual confirmation of his
independence to the Company, and the Company considers these
directors to be independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The names, brief biographies of the directors and relationship among
them are set out on pages 14 to 18 under Biographies of Directors and
Senior Management.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to formulate overall
strategy of the Group, monitor its financial performance and maintain
effective oversight over the management. Sufficient notice of meetings
is given to directors prior to a regular Board meeting, and each director
may request inclusion of matters in the agenda for Board meetings. A
detailed agenda, minutes of the previous meeting and accompanying
board papers are sent to directors before the meeting to facilitate
informed discussion and decision-making.

Every board member is entitled to have access to board papers and
related materials and has access to the advice and services of the
company secretary, and has the liberty to seek external professional
advice if necessary. The company secretary is responsible to the Board
for ensuring the procedures are followed and that all applicable rules
and regulations are complied with.

During the year, seven full board meetings were held and the
attendance of each director is set out on page 25.

The Board, in addition to its overall supervisory role, retains specific
responsibilities such as approving specific senior appointments,
approving financial accounts, recommending dividend payments,
approving policies relating to the Board’s compliance, etc.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

On 27 January 2011, Mr Chen Hsien Min was re-designated from an
executive director to a non-executive director of the Company. He
ceased to be the Managing Director of the Company and was appointed
as Vice-chairman of the Company. On the same date, Mr Chen Ying-
Chieh was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company. On
31 December 2011, Mr Chen Hsien Min retired as a non-executive
director of the Company.

Code Provision A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer should be separated and should not
be performed by the same individual. Since the re-designation
of directorship stated above, the Group does not have a separate
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and Mr Chen Ying-Chieh
holds both positions. The Board believes that vesting the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same person provides the
Group with strong and consistent leadership in the development and
execution of long-term business strategies. Going forward, the Group
will periodically review the effectiveness of this arrangement and
considers segregating the roles when it thinks appropriate.
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APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and are eligible for re-election. Every director newly
appointed by the Board is subject to election at the first general
meeting after his/her appointment.

Code Provision A.4.1 of the Code provides that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-
election. Following the re-designation and retirement of directorship
stated above, Mr Chen Hsien Min acted as a non-executive director
during the year who was not appointed for a specific term but is
subject to retirement by rotation and is eligible for re-election. The
Board considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure the
Company’s corporate governance practices are no less exacting than
those in the Code.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed director of the Company, on the first
occasion of his appointment, shall receive a tailored induction on the
responsibilities and on-going obligations to be observed by a director.
In addition, the senior management and the company secretary will
conduct briefing if necessary to ensure that the directors have a proper
understanding of the operations and business of the Group and that
they are aware of their responsibilities under the laws and applicable
regulations.

The functions of non-executive directors, as per the terms of reference
of the Board, have included the functions as specified in Code
Provisions A.5.2 (a) to (d) of the Code.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover in respect
of possible legal actions against its directors and officers. The scope of
coverage of the insurance is subject to review annually.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee,
to assist it in overseeing the Group’s affairs. Each committee has
its defined and written terms of reference setting out its duties,
powers and functions and are posted on the Company’s website. The
committees report regularly to the Board and make recommendations
on matters where appropriate.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee of the Company has been established
since April 2005 and as of the date of this report consists of the
following directors:

Mr Huang Shun-Tsai
(Chairman of the Committee)

Mr Kuo Jung-Cheng

Mr Lee Ted Tak Tai

Mr Kim Jin-Goon

Mr Chen Ying-Chieh

Independent Non-executive Director

Independent Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director

Executive Director

Major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are as
follows:

. To review the structure, size and composition of the Board on a
regular basis and make recommendations to the Board regarding
any proposed changes

. To identify individuals suitably qualified to become board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individual nominated for directorships

. To access the independence of independent non-executive
directors

. To make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors in particular the Chairman and
the Managing Director

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year. During
the year, one Nomination Committee meeting were held and the
attendance of each member is set out on page 25. At the meeting
held during the year, the independence of independent non-executive
directors was considered and the re-appointment of retiring directors
which were approved by the shareholders at the annual general
meeting was recommended.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Company has been established
since April 2005 and as the date of this report consists of the following
directors:

Mr Kuo Jung-Cheng
(Chairman of the Committee)

Mr Huang Shun-Tsai

Mr Lee Ted Tak Tai

Mr Kim Jin-Goon

Mr Chen Ying-Chieh

Independent Non-executive Director

Independent Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director

Executive Director
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Major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are as
follows:

. To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration

. To have the delegated responsibility to determine the specific
remuneration packages of all executive directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment, and make
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-
executive directors. The Remuneration Committee should consider
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the directors, employment
conditions elsewhere in the group and desirability of performance-
based remuneration

. To review and approve performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
from time to time

. To review and approve the compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management in connection with any loss
or termination of their office or appointment to ensure that
such compensation is determined in accordance with relevant
contractual terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair
and not excessive for the Company

. To review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure
that such arrangements are determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms and that any compensation payment is
otherwise reasonable and appropriate

. To ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. During
the year, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held and the
attendance of each member is set out on page 25. At the meeting
held during the year, the overall pay levels in Hong Kong, China
and Taiwan where the Group has establishments were reviewed and
considered. The remuneration of directors is pre-determined and is
based on their respective contractual terms of appointment, if any,
and as recommended by the Remuneration Committee. Details of the
emoluments paid/payable to individual director of the Company are set
out in Note 14 to the accounts.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company as of the date of this report
consists of the following directors:

Mr Lee Ted Tak Tai
(Chairman of the Committee)
Mr Huang Shun-Tsai
Mr Kuo Jung-Cheng
Mr Kim Jin-Goon

Independent Non-executive Director

Independent Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director

Major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are as follows:

. To consider the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditors, and to approve the remuneration and the terms
of engagement of the external auditors, including both audit and
non-audit services, and any questions of resignation or dismissal
of the external auditors of the Group

. To assess the independence of external auditors and discuss with
the external auditors the nature and scope of the audit

. To review interim and annual accounts before submission to the
Board

. To review the financial controls, internal controls and risk
management system of the Group and make recommendations to
the Board

. To review the external auditors’ management letter and material
queries raised by the auditors to management in respect of
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response

At the meetings held during the year, the Audit Committee had
performed the following work:

. To review the annual accounts and interim accounts

. To review external auditors’ audit plan, terms of engagement and
recommend the fees for the Board’s approval

. To review the management letters and reports issued by the
external auditors

o To review the effectiveness of internal control and financial
control systems

. To consider and review material related party transactions and
connected transactions, if any

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year. During the year,
three Audit Committee meetings were held and the executive directors,
the management and the external auditors attended to provide
necessary information. The attendance of each member to the meetings
is set out on page 25.
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ATTENDANCE OF BOARD AND BOARD HHRGRERGETITREGZ2 R
COMMITTEES’ MEETINGS J& 1% DL

The attendance rates of individual members in meetings of the Board B ARG ERGNEFGE TR OE
and Board Committees held in 2011 are detailed as follows: w2 AR R % B R R SN

Number of meetings attended/held during the term of office in 2011
I S Y Y& ZiE F UL
Remuneration ~ Nomination Audit  Attendance
Board Committee Committee Committee rate

HHE  HMZHE RAZAE FUZARE R

Executive directors HirEg#F

Mr Chen Ying-Chich BRSNS 11 1/1 100%
(Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) (FIEFEATHAH)

Mr Chang Chih-Kai RA LA 1 100%

Mr Chang Chih-Chiao REBLE 1 100%

Non-executive directors FHTEFE

Mr Chen Hsien Min PR R 6/7 11 87.5%
(re-designated from executive (MZF——fH—=JZTLH
director and appointed as HTE SRR AR TR
Vice-chairman on
27 January 2011)

Mr Kim Jin-Goon SRR 4/4 11 11 22 100%
(appointed on 13 April 2011) (P ZF——FW A+ = HEZT)

Ms Ma Xuezheng BEEL L 3/3 1/1 100%
(resigned on 13 April 2011) (i ZF—— W A4 = H BT

Independent non-executive directors B FHTES

Mr Hsiao Hsi-Ming FRIEMIEAE 6/6 11 1/1 22 100%
(Chairman of Audit Committee) (HEZEAE L)
(resigned on 1 September 2011) (R ZF——HF LA —HEHE)
Mr Huang Shun-Tsai BRI A 1 11 11 3/3 100%
(Chairman of Nomination Committee) HBEZAE L)
Mr Kuo Jung-Cheng BRRSA 1 11 1/1 3/3 100%
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee) (FZ 5 & 1)
Mr Lee Ted Tak Tai FERLE 11 11 100%
(Chairman of Audit Committee) (HEZEAE L)
(appointed on I September 2011) (M ZF——HF N —HEZM)
INTERNAL CONTROL P
The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective internal AT H A AR AR S A A R TR R - DR
controls to safeguard the Company’s assets. The Board and the Audit AAFEE - HREGRFELEZB GO ENMEAE
Committee periodically reviewed the effectiveness of the internal V] R 8 B 2 o) B 2 s o LS PSR K
control system of the Group which covered financial, operational, JELBR B BRI RE o #E S G IR RN RF R AT SN - DIAR
compliance and risk management functions. The Board also appoints IAREEZ TENNEERETF A EREETETRE
from time to time external professional to review the Group’s GBS R R HOEEH c ER G REEER S
major internal control procedures and report findings and areas for FRE o ASSEE NS B R 2 E Uy R
improvements to the Board Committees. The Board and the Audit L AR A B SSRGS -

Committee consider that the key aspects of the Group’s internal
control systems are reasonably addressed and the Group has complied
with the Code Provisions in general.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of
accounts of each financial period, which give a true and fair of the state
of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period.
In preparing the accounts, the directors adopt applicable accounting
policies and apply consistently. The directors also make prudent
and reasonable judgements and to ensure the accounts are on-going
concern basis.

MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for formulating overall strategy, monitoring
and controlling the performance of the Group whilst managing the
Group’s business is the responsibility of the management.

While the Board delegates aspects of its management and administration
functions to management, it has given clear directions as to the powers
of management, in particular, with respect to the circumstances where
management shall report back and obtain prior approval from the Board
before making decisions or entering into any commitments on behalf of
the Company.

Matters reserved to be approved by the Board include:

. Appointment of directors and senior executives

. Business plans and establishment of new markets

. Proposal for selection of external auditors

. Financial accounts and budgets

. Substantial capital investments and commitments

. Formation of policies and codes as required by regulatory bodies
. Formation of board committees

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the fees paid/payable to the Company’s external
auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, for the provision of audit service
was HK$4,280,000 and no other services were engaged by the
Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted stringent procedures governing directors’
securities transactions in compliance with the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code™) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. All directors
of the Company have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the year.
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Employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-
sensitive information of the Group are also subject to the compliance
with guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code. No
incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company during the
year.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication
with all shareholders and potential investors. Communication with
shareholders, investors and analysts are maintained through the
followings:

. Delivery of interim and annual reports to all shareholders through
either printed or electronic forms

. Publication of announcements on the interim and annual
results and key quarterly operating information on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company, and issue of other
announcements and shareholders’ circulars in accordance with
the continuing disclosure obligations under Listing Rules

. Holding of annual and special general meetings to provide a
channel for the Chairman of the Board and the Board Committees
to answer shareholders’ questions as well as seeking approval
from shareholders for relevant business and capital transactions.
At the annual general meetings, a separate resolution was
proposed by the Chairman in respect of each separate issue
including the re-election of directors

. Establishing dedicated divisions and personnel for liaison with
investors and analysts by answering their questions

. Arranging on-site visits to the Company’s establishments to
enhance their timely understanding of the situations and latest
development of the Company’s business operations

. Making available information on the Company’s website,
including description of the Company and its business, the Board
and corporate governance, results of the Company, financial
highlights and promotional materials, etc.

. Actively communicating with various parties, in particular,
convening briefing sessions, press conferences and individual
meetings with institutional investors upon the announcements of
the interim and annual results and making decisions on material
investments. The Company also participates in a range of
investor activities and communicates on one-on-one basis with its
investors regularly
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The directors submit their report together with the audited accounts of
the Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 18 to the accounts. The Group
is principally engaged in the manufacturing, distribution and retailing

of footwear, apparel and accessories mainly in China.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance by reportable segments is set

out in Note 5 to the accounts.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at that date are set

out in the accounts on pages 42 to 46.

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of HK8.0 cents per share, totalling HK$131,031,000,
was paid on 26 September 2011.

The board of directors recommends the payment of a final dividend of
HK9.0 cents per share, totalling HK$147,795,000 in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2011.

RESERVES

The distributable reserves of the Company, calculated in accordance
with the Companies Laws (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, as at 31 December 2011 amounted to HK$639,089,000 (2010:
HK$539,747,000).

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during

the year are set out in Note 29 to the accounts.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Donations made for charitable purposes by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$4,184,000 (2010: HK$2,391,000).

FIXED ASSETS

During the year, the Group acquired fixed assets of HK$349,669,000
(2010: HK$276,788,000). Movements in fixed assets of the Group are
set out in Notes 16 and 17 to the accounts.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the

year are set out in Note 27 to the accounts.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group

for the last five financial years is set out on page 112.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands where the

Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Chen Ying-Chieh (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer,
appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 27 January 2011)

Mr Chen Hsien Min (Managing Director, re-designated as

Non-executive director and Vice-chairman on 27 January 2011)

Mr Chen Tommy Yi-Hsun (appointed on 31 December 2011)
Mr Chang Chih-Kai
Mr Chang Chih-Chiao

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr Chen Hsien Min (Vice-chairman, appointed on 27 January 2011

and resigned on 31 December 2011)

Mr Kim Jin-Goon (appointed on 13 April 2011)
Ms Ma Xuezheng (resigned on 13 April 2011)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr Hsiao Hsi-Ming (resigned on I September 2011)

Mr Huang Shun-Tsai

Mr Kuo Jung-Cheng

Mr Lee Ted Tak Tai (appointed on I September 2011)
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ALTERNATE DIRECTOR

Mr Kim Jin-Goon (Alternate Director to Ms Ma Xuezheng,
resigned on 13 April 2011)

Mr Lau Wai Kei, Ricky (Alternate Director to Mr Kim Jin-Goon,
appointed on 13 April 2011)

In accordance with Article 91 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr Chen Tommy Yi-Hsun, Mr Kim Jin-Goon and Mr Lee
Ted Tak Tai will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,

being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Article 99 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr Chen Ying-Chieh will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

All the independent non-executive directors have confirmed their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and based
on such confirmation, the Company is of the opinion that the
independence status of the independent non-executive directors

remains intact as at 31 December 2011.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographies of directors and senior management are set out on

pages 14 to 18.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The term of directorship of each independent non-executive director is
either one year or two years and the term will continue for a successive
period of one year or two years unless terminated by either party giving

not less than one month’s notice to the other party.

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the

year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 31 December 2011, Mr Chen Hsien Min, a non-executive director
and vice-chairman of the Company, retired from all positions held
in the Board and board committee of the Company. The board of
directors approved to pay Mr Chen Hsien Min an emolument of
HK$30,000,000 upon his resignation. As all the applicable percentage
ratios (as defined in Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules) for the payment
of emolument exceed 0.1% but are less than 5%, it constituted an
exempt connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules and is subject to reporting and announcement
requirements. An announcement in relation to the connected
transaction was made by the Company on 29 December 2011.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2011, the interests of each director in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

RGN
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Percentage of

issued share

Corporate Underlying capital of

interest interest Total the Company

(i N |

[ E )

2\ ] BE 4 HH BARE #5 At A H 41 b

Mr Chen Ying-Chich PR 9578 S AR 147,738,920 16,000,000 163,738,920 9.98
(Note 1) (Note 3)
(B 5E1) (B 5E3)

Mr Chen Tommy Yi-Hsun W16 ) 5 A= 200,846,895 4,000,000 204,846,895 12.48
(Note 2) (Note 3)
(B 5E2) (B 5E3)

Mr Chang Chih-Kai SRAB L - 6,500,000 6,500,000 0.40
(Note 3)
(B 5E3)

Mr Chang Chih-Chiao R A - 5,500,000 5,500,000 0.33
(Note 3)
(B 5E3)
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Notes:

1. Mr Chen Ying-Chieh has beneficial interest in 147,738,920 shares in the
Company through Pushkin Holding Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, in which Mr Chen Ying-Chieh holds one-third of the
equity interest.

2. Mr Chen Tommy Yi-Hsun has beneficial interest in 200,846,895 shares in the
Company through Top Glory Assets Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, in which Mr Chen Tommy Yi-Hsun holds one-half of
the equity interest.

3. These interests represented the interests in underlying shares of the Company
in respect of share options granted to the directors on 27 January 2010.

Save as disclosed above and the section “Share option scheme”, as at
31 December 2011, none of the directors or chief executive, nor any of
their associates (including their spouses and children under 18 years of
age), had any interests in or had been granted, or exercised, any rights
to subscribe for shares of the Company and its associated corporations

required to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors and chief executives
of the Company (including their spouses and children under 18
years of age) to hold any interests or short positions in shares or
underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its associated

corporations.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted and amended its share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) on 29 May 2003 and 7 December 2009
respectively to provide incentives to the employees, including any
executive and non-executive directors and officers of the Company
and its subsidiaries, to contribute to the Group and to enable the
Group to recruit high-calibre employees and attract and retain human
resources that are valuable to the Group. Pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme, the directors may, at their discretion, invite eligible
participants including employees, executive and non-executive
directors, officers, agents or consultants of the Group to take up
options to subscribe for the Company’s shares subject to the terms and
conditions stipulated therein. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended,

the Share Option Scheme will remain in force for ten years.
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The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
share options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme must not
in aggregate exceed (i) 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
on 17 June 2008, the date of approval of the refreshment of the Share
Option Scheme mandate limit by shareholders of the Company after
the adoption of the Share Option Scheme on 29 May 2003; or (ii) 30%
of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time. No share
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme if this will
result in such limit exceeded unless another shareholders’ approval
is obtained. As at the date of this annual report, the number of shares
available for issue, save for those granted but yet to be exercised, under
the Share Option Scheme is 93,244,238, representing approximately
5.7% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue. The
total number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of share options (including both exercised and outstanding
share options) granted in any 12-month period to each participant must

not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue.

The exercise price must be at least the highest of: (a) the closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant; (b) the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal

value of the shares.
The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of

HKS$1 in total by the grantee.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to

vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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Details of movements of the share options granted under the Share PEE L —— T A = B IEEE  RIEE
Option Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2011 were as follows: e B2 2 BERCHE 2 S B s s -
Outstanding
Exercise from 1 January 2011 Exercisable
Date of grant price to 31 December 2011 period
M_%——f
i i
“F K
FZAZt—H
R b KT fr M
HKS
iy
Executive directors
HITEE
Mr Chen Ying-Chieh 27 January 2010 6.19 16,000,000 27 January 2011 to
WAL “E-RE-RZLH 26 January 2020
#?**E AZTLtHZE
— ? S E H +/ VA
(Note 6)
(FLo)
Mr Chang Chih-Kai 27 January 2010 6.19 6,500,000 27 January 2011 to
A “E-FE-AZ1LH 26 January 2020
*ﬁ**ﬁ AZTLtAZE
— 7 S $ H +/ \ E]
(Note 6)
(Wt ito)
Mr Chang Chih-Chiao 27 January 2010 6.19 5,500,000 27 January 2011 to
REFEE CE-RE-ACHER 26 January 2020
#T**E AZTtHZE
— ? S E H +/ vH
(Note 6)
(fitike)
Mr Chen Tommy Yi-Hsun 27 January 2010 6.19 4,000,000 27 January 2011 to
Bt o “E-FE-AZ1HLH 26 January 2020
*ﬁ**i AZTtAZE
— 7 S E H +/ \ E]
(Note 7)
(HFE7)
Ms Chang Wan Hsun 27 January 2010 6.19 4,000,000 27 January 2011 to
(an associate of S i I ol 26 January 2020
Mr Chang Chih-Kai and - f**ﬁ AZTtHZE
Mr Chang Chih-Chiao) ZEZRE-ZRH
REA L CRE S E R (Note 7)
REFEECHEAL) (Bt 3E7)
Mr Chen Hsien Min (re-designated from 27 January 2010 6.19 12,000,000 27 January 2011 to
executive to non-executive director “E-ZE-HZ1tH 26 January 2020
on 27 January 2011 and resigned as ﬁi**i AZTLtHZE
anon-executive director on ZEZRE-AZTRHE
31 December 2011 and appointed as (Note 8)
aconsultant on | January 2012, (H5E8)

an associate of Mr Chen Tommy Yi-Hsun)
BREREE (R % ——F—J - fLH
EREAFATESE R ——F
TRt HRERUGES
RoE—"F-A—-HEZERERN
Bla®EE L BEAD)
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Date of grant
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R R I

RGN

Outstanding

Exercised at
during 31 December
the year 2011
[ S
FEAER
AT

Lapsed
during
the year

RERKHK  RERTTHE

Exercisable
period

7 B 1

In aggregate
At

In aggregate
A
=]

In aggregate
At

In aggregate
it

In aggregate
&t

In aggregate
At

In aggregate
At

27 January 2010
“EF-FE-AITER

27 January 2010
e =

22 July 2010
ZE-REEAZ N

22 Tuly 2010
SB-BELAZ TN

27 January 2011
“F-—F-AZTLH

19 August 2011
e Rt

28 October 2011
“F-ETASTAH

7.61

7.61

7.84

8.35

8.30

13,025,000

5,000,000

1,000,000

1,100,000

2,500,000
(Note 1)
(3ED

1,000,000
(Note 2)
(Hit3E2)

300,000
(Note 3)
(W5E3)

280,000 70,000
(Note 4)

(ff5t4)

12,675,000

2,000,000 3,000,000 -
(Note 5)

(ff5Es)

1,000,000

500,000

600,000

2,500,000

1,000,000

300,000

35

27 January 2011

to 26 January 2020

S 1L
“EZFE-AZTRH
(Note 7)

(HizE7)

27 January 2011

to 26 January 2020
“E-—F-fTttHE
“EREFE-ASAAH

1 April 2011 to

21 July 2020
ZE-—EUA-HE
Y St <28 o £ e pd €
(Note 9)

(HfiE9)

1 April 2011 to

21 July 2020
“F-—HNA-R%E
CECREERA AN
(Note 10)

(HriEL0)

27 January 2012 to

26 January 2021
“E-THE-JTTLHE
SEIR-AZAAA
(Note 7)

(H7ET)

19 August 2012

to 18 August 2021
ZE-CHEARTARE
ZEZ-EARTAR
(Note 7)

(B 3E7)

28 October 2012 to

27 October 2021
“E-CHEFAZTARER
ZEZ-FFAZt LA
(Note 10)

(Wf3E10)
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Notes:

1.

PORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The closing price per share immediately before the date of grant is HK$7.66.
The closing price per share immediately before the date of grant is HK$8.70.
The closing price per share immediately before the date of grant is HK$8.30.

The closing price per share immediately before the date of exercise is
HK$8.80.

The closing price per share immediately before the date of exercise is
HK$8.69.

15% of the share options vested or will vest on each of the five anniversary
dates of the date of grant and 25% of the share options will vest, subject
to certain performance targets determined by the board of directors of the
Company, on the fifth anniversary of the date of grant.

20% of the share options vested or will vest on each of the five anniversary

dates of the date of grant.

15% of the share options vested or will vest on each of the four anniversary
dates of the date of grant and 40% of the share options will vest on the fifth
anniversary date of the date of grant.

One-fifth of the share options will vest on each anniversary with the first

tranche starting on 1 April 2011.

One-third of the share options will vest on each anniversary with the first
tranche starting on 1 April 2011.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under

Secti
2011

on 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31 December
, the Company had been notified of the following substantial

shareholders’ interests, being 5% or more of the Company’s issued

share capital. These interests are in addition to those disclosed under

the section “Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares of the

Company”.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

RGN

Percentage

of issued share

Number of capital of
Name Capacity shares the Company
A2 ® B 81T
4% -2/ it 8 H i ZNER
Long positions
wa
Lucky Earn International Limited Beneficial interests 400,719,995  (Note 1) 24.42
HaEA A (Bi3ED)
Premier China, Ltd. Beneficial interests 298,510,572  (Note 2) 18.19
HaEA A (B 3E2)
TPG Asia GenPar V Advisors, Inc. Interests of controlled corporation 298,510,572  (Note 2) 18.19
VN A 2 M (B &E2)
TPG Asia Genpar V, L.P. Interests of controlled corporation 298,510,572  (Note 2) 18.19
SN T 2 M 5 (B &E2)
TPG Asia V, L.P. Interests of controlled corporation 298,510,572  (Note 2) 18.19
TR T 2R A (P 3E2)
TPG Group Holdings (SBS) Advisors, Inc. Interests of controlled corporation 298,510,572 (Note 2) 18.19
VRN A 2 HE 4 (B 3E2)
TPG Group Holdings (SBS), L.P. Interests of controlled corporation 298,510,572 (Note 2) 18.19
SN A 2 M 4 (P 3E2)
TPG Holdings I, L.P. Interests of controlled corporation 298,510,572  (Note 2) 18.19
TN Z R A (P 3E2)
TPG Holdings I-A, L.P. Interests of controlled corporation 298,510,572  (Note 2) 18.19
TN T 2R AR (P 3E2)
Mr David Bonderman Interests of controlled corporation 298,510,572 (Note 2) 18.19
TN T ZHE A (B 3E2)
Mr James G. Coulter Interests of controlled corporation 298,510,572 (Note 2) 18.19
TN TZ A (B 3E2)
Top Glory Assets Limited Beneficial interests 200,846,895  (Note 3) 12.24
A A (B 3E3)
Mr Chen Tommy Yi-Hsun Interests of controlled corporation 200,846,895  (Note 3) 12.24
B B S A TN Z A (P 3E3)
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Percentage

of issued share

Number of capital of

Name Capacity shares the Company

A nw B # 1T

Eq 54 B¢ 1 ¥ H JBE A H 43 be

Ms Chen Jennifer Yi-Chen Interests of controlled corporation 200,846,895  (Note 3) 12.24
GEIsE R CRLYNLIPA | £ (FfF5E3)

Pushkin Holding Limited Beneficial interests 147,738,920  (Note 4) 9.00
A A A (Fff5E4)

Mr Chen Ying-Chieh Interests of controlled corporation 147,738,920  (Note 4) 9.00
BRI CRLYNCIPA | £ (Fff5E4)

Mr Chen Ying-Tien Interests of controlled corporation 147,738,920  (Note 4) 9.00
e e CRLYNLIPA | £ (Fff5E4)

Mr Chen Ying-Che Interests of controlled corporation 147,738,920  (Note 4) 9.00
BRI e CRLYNLIPA | £ (Fff5E4)

Notes: B 5T

1. Mr Chang Chih-Kai and Mr Chang Chih-Chiao, both executive directors of 1. AN F AT R L e A MOR R T eE BL E W 4
the Company, and their two sisters have beneficial interests of 26%, 26% b Wk 43 ) 48 AT A 5 O 4o BE IS 5 R SZ Z Lucky Earn
and 24% each, respectively, in Lucky Earn International Limited, a company International Limited 26% ~ 26% &%24% 2 & % #E i
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

2. Premier China, Ltd. has subscribed for convertible bonds and warrants of the 2. Premier China, Ltd. & &8 I 75 24 7] W] $ [R5 25 2 R I HE
Company. Upon full conversions of the convertible bonds and full exercise o 7 T A AR 5 A T SO0 SRR RE RE A T AT (R
of the warrants, an aggregate of 278,510,572 shares will be issued. Premier T AT 45 36278,510,572 £ © PremierChina, Ltd. %
China, Ltd. is a subsidiary of TPG Group Holdings (SBS) Advisors, Inc., TPG Group Holdings (SBS) Advisors, Inc..Z &2 7] > i
which is in turn owned 50% each by Mr David Bonderman and Mr James G. 7%/ A Bl i David BondermanE4: & James G. CoulterJ¢/E
Coulter. HHEAS0% ©

3. Mr Chen Tommy Yi-Hsun (“Mr Chen”), an executive director of the 3. BEfR N JeE (TRJeA ] » AR R ZATES) KBHIAE
Company, and Ms Chen Jennifer Yi-Chen (“Ms Chen”) have beneficial T (TB L ]) 4% 18 5 1 PR 2 95 5 R 22 BF s 5 11 A
interests of 50% each in Top Glory Assets Limited, a company incorporated 3. Z Top Glory Assets Limited 50%1 5 o AR 9% i %5 K i
in the British Virgin Islands. By virtue of the SFO, they are deemed to be B Aol > 1% 55 45 25 £ Top Glory Assets Limited IT A
interested in 200,846,895 shares of the Company held by Top Glory Assets 200,846,895 % 4= 7 &) [ 4y 4 A RE ik
Limited.

4. Mr Chen Ying-Chieh, the Chairman of the Company, and his two brothers, Mr 4, AN ) T BRI A e A R % 2 T 45 S B B i e A
Chen Ying-Tien and Mr Chen Ying-Che, each has one-third of the beneficial BR BT Jo 4% F B %6 A Pushkin Holding Limited =43 2
interests of Pushkin Holding Limited. By virtue of the SFO, they are deemed —IRESS o MRIERE T S B - 1% 45 Bl 7E Pushkin
to be interested in the 147,738,920 shares of the Company held by Pushkin Holding Limited T # f 2 147,738,920/ 4% /A &) [ 4y v #E
Holding Limited. FHERR o
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were

entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales during the year attributable to the Group’s five

largest customers were less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest and
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 20% and 54 %,

respectively, of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder of the
Company which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital, had any beneficial interest in the

Group’s five largest suppliers.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Information on the Company’s compliance of the Code of Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules is

set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 19 to 27.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

On the basis of information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at the
date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed

minimum public float required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers shall retire and being eligible, offer itself for
re-appointment, and a resolution to effect this will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Chen Ying-Chieh
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 19 March 2012
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- INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DAPHNE
INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Daphne
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 42 to 111, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2011, and
the consolidated profit and loss account, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or

accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.

Daphne International Holdings Limited 40
BOROWE OB ERAER A

3 7 A BB e

¥ 7 A B Bl e
B R e 190 Bt % b A PR 2 ] Jbe o
(1] 2 7 B 2 199 7 W2 )

AR (LT R [ 3 AN ) % 5t R 5842 1
1 R Y B B A PR A ] (TR A AL M
HM g~ (RS BAEH ) AR S MBS HER » Ibas
BMBBRERAER - F -—F+ "=+ A%
B F B E AR R B IR RS S R
T BEamkER ARG EEEE RIS HE
TR > DA T BORME B R H A R R
e

30 5% B B i R SRR I Y AT

B A S OH A TR A Wt A2 6 28 A 1Y 7 s
SV 5 S ot ) B e ol A AR B81) R 95 8 L E i
ERE MR > DA AR B GR A U ET A F
9 PR - T v B FCRR 0 et S A5 R T A 1)
R - DAGEAR & BB 3R A A TE o 7 SR B B
T A Y K B R R o

A B il B 35 AT

T T ARDRFA 09 o w365 5% 5 A5 B B R
PR R - 3 % PR ZR B A Mk - 3 i) 4 B BCSROHR
FATE TR o BRULZ SMA R A E A o FoAM
A A R YR AT T A+ A E ORI L
1AL

T CARR T B T A UM 190 75 s o O Lo
FT A o 5% % W QI R FAM <y A TR AL Sl AR
LeshAs st > LLa Bk E A5 G B IR e B A AEAE
EREEPN Y $130



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2011, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 19 March 2012
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS

ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

25

#3118

#

BE £ —-—Ht+_H=+—HIL4EE

BOROWE OB ERAER A

2011 2010
SE A EEE
Note HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
R 5 Tt T 7T
Turnover e 5 8,576,762 6,623,840
Cost of sales BB A (3,332,985)  (2,822,999)
Gross profit EBH 5,243,777 3,800,841
Other income HoAth e A 6 121,354 88,869
Other (losses)/gains — net HAth (B518) /e 4 — 1B 4 7 (74,203) 11,729
Selling and distribution expenses BB T S B X (3,366,335) (2,485,379)
General and administrative expenses — W B AT BB (556,026) (444,390)
Fair value loss on derivative financial i e T RATEHE
instrument — warrants i 48 — B0 B R - (77,328)
Finance costs A5 A 8 (46,907) (44,799)
Share of profit of an associated company JRE A — [T Bt v 2 ) R 421 618
Profit before income tax o JIr 15 B i 222 9 1,322,081 850,161
Income tax expense Jir 15 Bt B =2 10 (377,350) (238,550)
Profit for the year AN B 944,731 611,611
Attributable to: DLUR £ 07 HEAG -
Owners of the Company EN/NETE SN 933,063 595,510
Non-controlling interests JE 1 M 5 11,668 16,101
944,731 611,611
Earnings per share B 1 A 12
Basic (HK cents) FAR (AL 56.96 36.36
Diluted (HK cents) B (A 52.23 34.15
Dividends i g5} 13 278,826 196,548
Daphne International Holdings Limited 42



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF £ A W g R
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 WE X ——Ft+_H=+—HILFE

2011 2010

SEAE CE R

HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000

T#T T#E T

Profit for the year ONpR | 944,731 611,611

Currency translation differences B T 7 R 149,013 86,901

Total comprehensive income for the year GRS k| 1,093,744 698,512
Attributable to: DL & 07 EAL

Owners of the Company EN/NESIE RE DN 1,077,576 679,843

Non-controlling interests Ik P 1 RE 75 16,168 18,669

1,093,744 698,512
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¥ g2
- CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET HaEREAMEE
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011 W oFE——F - H=+—H
2011 2010
“E - ZE-FF
Note HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Bt 51 T#u THIT
Non-current assets FE T A A
Intangible assets e & 15 129,926 129,889
Land use rights - Al RE 16 51,196 50,336
Fixed assets I8l 7 17 899,662 710,850
Interest in an associated company A — [ A 2 20 3,359 3,338
Available-for-sale financial assets Al RS E 21 16,624 63,183
Deposits paid for acquisition of fixed assets WA ] 7 R 2 A R A 63,947 -
Long-term rental deposits and prepayments 1= BRI 4 4 4 B FEAS 3K IE 175,564 109,294
Deferred income tax assets I 4E T A5 B G 32 106,469 56,388
1,446,747 1,123,278
Current assets it )
Inventories Pesy 22 2,058,526 1,084,308
Trade receivables 5 REWUIR K 23 274,303 210,430
Other receivables, deposits HoAth B R - H &
and prepayments 2 EA A 926,096 571,360
Bank deposit with maturity A7 =l A~
over three months SRAT A7 K - 35,385
Cash and cash equivalents Bl R BLGEEY 24 1,795,744 2,024,289
5,054,669 3,925,772
Current liabilities TE AR
Trade payables B 5 REAT R K 25 819,131 577,949
Other payables and accrued charges At JE AT R R K R 563,497 371,957
Income tax payable JRE ST A5 250,612 199,295
Bank loan — unsecured SRAT B — ML A 26 6,998 11,281
1,640,238 1,160,482
Net current assets U By 3,414,431 2,765,290
Total assets less current liabilities K WO B B 4,861,178 3,888,568
Daphne International Holdings Limited 44
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET HeaEEARE

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011 Wz ——Ft A =+—H
2011 2010
SE o CF R
Note HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
(i T#u THIT
Financed by: AR

Share capital g A 27 164,096 163,789
Reserves i 29 3,871,771 2,960,543
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A</ A A A ME 4G #E 45 4,035,867 3,124,332
Non-controlling interests I 2 i 1 A 195,759 183,271
Total equity HARE 45 4,231,626 3,307,603

Non-current liabilities I i B &
Convertible bonds ] 4 30 605,879 556,622
License fee payables JREAST 5 B (1 i 31 4,138 3,460
Deferred income tax liabilities % 4 T 15 B B 32 19,445 5,171
Other non-current liabilities HoAth JF i Bh £ i 920 15,712
629,552 580,965
Total equity and non-current liabilities HARE 53 I IR ) AL 4,861,178 3,888,568

Chen Ying-Chieh Chang Chih-Kai
B A RA S
Director Director
£ £
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- BALANCE SHEET ErEAlE

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011 W o Ez——F+_H=1+—H
2011 2010
R
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
B 51 T T T
Non-current assets FE B G E
Investments in subsidiaries B A E 2 B 18 368,822 360,635
Current assets it )
Other receivables HC At JEE Wi R K 285 334
Amount due from a subsidiary JRRE Wi — [T o A D B 19 1,209,941 1,049,623
Cash and cash equivalents Bl R BLGEEY 24 150 353
1,210,376 1,050,310
Current liabilities it B A R
Accrued charges e 2 58,498 23,439
58,498 23,439
Net current assets A R 1,151,878 1,026,871
Total assets less current liabilities K WO B B 1,520,700 1,387,506
Financed by: EHARE
Share capital A 27 164,096 163,789
Reserves fiti it 29 750,725 651,383
Total equity HOHE 25 914,821 815,172
Non-current liabilities FE i E) A fE
Convertible bonds A] 4 R 5 30 605,879 556,622
Other non-current liabilities HoAth JF i B & fE - 15,712
605,879 572,334
Total equity and non-current liabilities HARE R IR R ) B AR 1,520,700 1,387,506
Chen Ying-Chieh Chang Chih-Kai
Director Director
#HH #HH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

BE - ——Ht+_H=+—HILEE

Attributable to
owners of the Company
A2 E B N AL
Non-
Share controlling
capital Reserves interests Total
Jie A% i Ik e Tl i HE 25 At
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T #s0 T o0 AR T Hs 0
At 1 January 2010 AR -FE—J—H 163,789 2,039,109 39,027 2,241,925
Profit for the year A A 81 A - 595,510 16,101 611,611
Currency translation differences T s TE b 2= R — 84,333 2,568 86,901
Total comprehensive income A THT IR 2 AR AR - 679,843 18,669 698,512
Acquisition of subsidiaries AT Jif o JEg 2 ) - - 129,611 129,611
Partial acquisition and disposal WS B R s 5 T B 2 )
of subsidiaries A 1 0y - (197) 197 -
Dividends i B - (180,173) (4,233) (184,406)
Transfer of warrants from liability R R ol B
to equity (Note 30) 4 M 4% (B E30) - 363,370 - 363,370
Share-based payment expense DA Ay 5 He i 2 A5 3 B 32 - 58,589 - 58,589
Write-back of unclaimed dividends 4 0] = SH B S, - 2 - 2
Total transactions with owners BLYEA N3 5 B - 241,591 125,575 367,166
At 31 December 2010 /e S S
+=-H=+—H 163,789 2,960,543 183,271 3,307,603
Profit for the year AN A - 933,063 11,668 944,731
Currency translation differences 1 M S, 2 - 144,513 4,500 149,013
Total comprehensive income A THT U £ AR A - 1,077,576 16,168 1,093,744
Dividends Ji B - (231,106) (3,680) (234,786)
Issue of shares upon exercise AT B T HE I
of share options BEAT Ay 307 18,696 - 19,003
Share-based payment expense DL Ay 2 3 2 AN 3K B 32 - 46,061 - 46,061
Write-back of unclaimed dividends P88 1) o S B 2 - 1 - 1
Total transactions with owners BLEA N3C ) HAHR 307 (166,348) (3,680) (169,721)
At 31 December 2011 h A
+=-H=+—H 164,096 3,871,771 195,759 4,231,626
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW HEBEemER
STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011 wE - F——Ft+_H=+—HIFFE
2011 2010
S}k CEEA
Note HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
B 5 E T#T THIT
Operating activities BEIEH)
Cash generated from operations BEEEA 2R E 33 609,946 1,156,650
Income tax paid SENIRES (367,311) (264,359)
Net cash generated from operating activities FRA NG B B A 2 BT 242,635 892,291
Investing activities & 5
Dividend received from an associated company £ Wi — [H] B 2 28 ) B 2 550 582
Interest received s FLE 63,143 37,151
Payment for land use rights - b A REAT R - (3,820)
Purchase of fixed assets i L (391,693) (272,968)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets th B[] 2 R R 2,171 4,080
Decrease in bank deposit with maturity A7 FOY B = H 2
over three months SRATAF Ak D 35,385 42,615
Acquisition of license rights WA S S R P (1,966) (4,532)
Acquisition of additional interest in an WA RS T L B A
available-for-sale financial asset ZHRHME £ (15,313) (29,559)
Net cash outflow from acquisition s i A o ) 2 B
of subsidiaries Ui 3 (15,000) (2,758)
Net cash used in investing activities BB B B 2 B A (322,723) (229,209)
Financing activities il 5 1 )
Dividends paid A & (231,106) (180,173)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest AT Bh Jag 2 ) I 428 il 1k
of subsidiaries 45 BB (3,680) (4,233)
Interest paid A FILE (22,244) (20,608)
Proceeds from issue of shares upon AT {08 1 1 HE IR AT % 43
exercise of share options Z WK 19,003 -
New bank loans raised B SRAT R - 88,920
Repayment of bank loans 1 32 SRAT B K (3,974) (122,899)
Decrease in pledged bank deposit CL S SR A T A7 3 D - 2,915
Net cash used in financing activities Pl T ) O R 2 B VR A (242,001) (236,078)
(Decrease)/increase in cash and B4 K a5 HY)
cash equivalents (W) /1 (322,089) 427,004
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January W—H—HZBl4& Kk
HE%EY 2,024,289 1,544,851
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [T 2% 435 1)) 5 228 93,544 52,434

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December A = H =1 —HZ &
KB EFHY 24 1,795,744 2,024,289
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Daphne International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) is principally engaged in the
manufacturing, distribution and retailing of footwear, apparel and
accessories in China and export sales with major market in the
United States of America (the “US”).

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P. O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands.

These consolidated accounts have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 19 March 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated accounts are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated accounts have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The consolidated
accounts have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-
sale financial assets, financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of accounts in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated accounts, are disclosed in Note 4.

(i) Standards and amendments effective and adopted by

the Group in 2011

HKAS 24 (Revised) “Related Party Disclosures”
amends the definition of related party and clarifies
its meaning. This may result in changes to those
parties who are identified as being related parties of
the reporting entity. The Group has reassessed the
identification of its related parties in accordance with
the revised definition and concluded that the revised
definition does not have any material impact on the
Group’s related party disclosures in the current and
previous years.
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- NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(1)

Standards and amendments effective and adopted by
the Group in 2011 (Continued)

HKAS 24 (Revised) also introduces simplified
disclosure requirements applicable to related party
transactions where the Group and the counterparty are
under the common control, joint control or significant
influence of a government, government agency or
similar body. These new disclosures are not relevant
to the Group because the Group is not a government
related entity.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments:
Disclosures” (as part of the improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2010) requires disclosures in respect of the
description of collateral held as security and of other
credit enhancements and their financial effect of the
amount that best represents the maximum exposure
to credit risk. The disclosures about the Group’s
financial instruments are consistent with the amended
disclosures requirements. These amendments do
not have any material impact on the classification,
recognition and measurement of the amounts
recognised in the financial statements in the current

and previous years.

The following new standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations are mandatory for the first time for
the financial period beginning 1 January 2011 but are
not currently relevant to the Group.
HKAS 32 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Presentation —
Classification of Rights Issues
First-time Adoption of HKFRSs -
Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosure for First-time Adopters

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 14
(Amendments)

Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement
HK(IFRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with

Equity Instruments
[mprovements to Amendments published in 2010

HKFRSs 2010
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)
(ii) Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that have been issued but are not
yet effective nor been adopted by the Group in 2011
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Presentation of Financial
Statements — Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive

Income *

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets >

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits *

HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements *

HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures *

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Financial Instrument: Presentation —

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities 3
HKFRS 1 (Amendments) First-time Adoption of HKFRS -
Severe Hyperinflation
and Removal of Fixed
Dates for First-time Adopters !
HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Transfer of Financial Assets '
HKFRS 7 (Amendments)  Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities *
HKFRS 9 (Amendments)  Financial Instruments ®

HKERS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements *

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements *

HKERS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities *

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement *

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production

Phase of a Surface Mine *

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
July 2011

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2012

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
July 2012

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014

© Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2015

The adoption of the above new/revised HKFRSs will
affect the presentation and disclosure of the accounts
and management anticipates that there will be no
significant impact on the results and the financial
position of the Group.
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- NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Consolidation
The consolidated accounts include the accounts of

the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to 31

December.

(@

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group
has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than one half of the voting rights. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to
account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value
of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs
are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the acquiree’s net assets.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in
consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
and receivable.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquire
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquire over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly
in the statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Consolidation (Continued)

®

(ii)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with owners of the Group.
For purchases from non-controlling interests, the
difference between any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also

recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the equity is
remeasured to its fair value, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit and loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an
associate or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are

reclassified to profit and loss.

(iii) Associated company

An associated company is an entity over which the
Group has significant influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of between
20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investment in an
associated company is accounted for using the equity
method of accounting and is initially recognised at
cost.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are classified to profit and loss
where appropriate.
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- NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Consolidation (Continued)
(iii) Associated company (Continued)

The Group’s share of its associated company post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised
in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses
in the associated company equals or exceeds its
interest in the associated company, including any
other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associated company.

(¢) Foreign currency translation

@

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Each of the Group’s entities determines its own
functional currency and items included in the accounts
of each of the Group’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated accounts are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (“HKD"”), which is different from
the Company’s functional currency of Renminbi
(“RMB”). The directors consider that the presentation
of consolidated accounts in HKD will facilitate
the interpretation and understanding of financial

information of the Group.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated profit and loss account
within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the consolidated profit and
loss account within other (losses)/gains — net.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(¢) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of the security and other changes in the carrying
amount of the security. Translation differences related
to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in
the profit and loss account, and other changes in the
carrying amount are recognised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities are recognised in the profit and
loss account as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities classified as available-for-sale
are included in the available-for-sale reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

— income and expenses for each profit and loss
account are translated at average exchange rates;
and

—  all resulting exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign operations, and of borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to shareholders’ equity. When
a foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold,
such exchange differences are recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account as part of the gain
or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.
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- NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent

(e)

with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating

decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,

who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing

performance of the operating segments, has been identified

as the executive directors of the Company that make

strategic decisions.

Intangible assets

(@

(i)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of
the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiaries
at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisition of
subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Separately
recognised goodwill is tested annually for impairment
and carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains or losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose.

License rights

Separately acquired license rights are stated at
historical cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. They are
initially measured as the fair value of the consideration
given to acquire the license at the time of the
acquisition. The consideration given represents
expected variable payments based on predetermined
criteria on future revenues from the licensed business
that can be reliably estimated at the time of the
acquisition.

License rights are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the rights of 7 to 30 years.
Amortisation is included in general and administrative

expenses in the consolidated profit and loss account.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

®

(g)

Intangible assets (Continued)

(iii) Trademarks
Separately acquired trademarks are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Trademarks acquired in a
business combination are recognised initially at fair
value at the acquisition date and subsequently carried
at the amount initially recognised less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Amortisation of trademarks that have definite
useful lives is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the costs of acquired trademarks and
patents over their estimated useful lives of 20 years.
Amortisation is included in general and administrative

expenses in the consolidated profit and loss account.

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost mainly represents the consideration paid for the right
to use the land on which various plants and buildings are
situated for a period of 10 to 50 years from the date the
respective right was granted. Amortisation of land use rights
is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of the

rights.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets, comprise buildings, leasehold improvements,
construction-in-progress, plant and machinery, furniture,
fixtures and equipment and motor vehicles, are stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the profit and loss account

during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Fixed assets are depreciated at rates sufficient to write
off their cost less accumulated impairment losses to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives on a

straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:
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- NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g)

(h)

Fixed assets (Continued)

Buildings Over the terms of the lease or
50 years, whichever is
shorter

Leasehold improvements Over the terms of the lease

or 1 to 5 years, whichever

is shorter
Plant and machinery 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

Construction-in-progress represents fixed assets under
construction and pending installation and is stated at
cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost
includes the costs of construction of buildings and the
costs of plant and machinery. No depreciation is charged
on construction-in-progress until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and are available for intended use.
When the assets concerned are brought into use, the costs
are transferred to fixed assets and depreciated in accordance
with the policy stated above.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,

and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2(h)).

Gains or losses on disposals of fixed assets, the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant assets, are recognised in the profit and loss

account.

Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet
been available for use are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets
Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following

categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and

receivables and available-for-sale. The classification

depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were

acquired. Management determines the classification of its

financial assets at initial recognition.

()

(i)

(iii)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are
classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as
current assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the balance sheet date which are
classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables
comprise trade receivables and other receivables (Note
2(k)), deposits and cash and cash equivalents (Note
2(1)) in the balance sheet.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the balance sheet date.
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- NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for
all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction
costs are expensed in the profit and loss account. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
financial assets classified under financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are presented in the profit and loss
account within other (losses)/gains — net in the period in
which they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the profit
and loss account as part of other income when the Group’s

right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated
in a foreign currency and classified as available-for-sale
are analysed between translation differences resulting from
changes in amortised cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. The translation
differences on monetary securities are recognised in profit
and loss account; translation differences on non-monetary
securities are recognised in equity. Changes in the fair
value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified as

available-for-sale are recognised in equity.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the profit and loss
account as gains and losses from available-for-sale financial
assets.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the profit and loss account as part of other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

@

Financial assets (Continued)

Recognition and measurement (Continued)

The fair values of quoted financial assets are based on
current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not
active (and for unlisted securities), the Group establishes
fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the
use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other
instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash
flow analysis, and option pricing models, making maximum
use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on
entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered as an indicator that the securities are impaired.
If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in the profit and loss account — is removed
from equity and recognised in the profit and loss account.
Impairment losses recognised in the profit and loss account
on equity instruments are not reversed through the profit
and loss account. Impairment test on trade receivables is
described in Note 2(k).

Inventories

Inventories comprise raw materials, work-in-progress
and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, calculated on the weighted average
basis, comprises materials, direct labour, other direct
costs and related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity) and excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less applicable variable selling expenses.
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- NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k)

M

(m)

(n)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less provision for impairment.
A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
is established when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according
to the original terms of receivables. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or
delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the
trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the original effective interest rate. The amount of the loss
upon provision made is recognised in the profit and loss
account. When a trade receivable is proven uncollectible, it
is written off against the provision for impairment of trade
and other receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to the profit and loss

account.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, time deposits and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts
are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the
balance sheet.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the profit and loss account over the period

of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(0)

(p)

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holders, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value of
the consideration that would be received do not vary, are
accounted for as compound financial instruments which

contain both a liability and an equity component.

At initial recognition, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is determined using a market interest rate
for an equivalent non-convertible bond. The remainder of
the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option as equity
component. Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a
compound financial instrument are allocated to the liability
and equity components in proportion to the allocation of
proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost, calculated using the effective interest
method, until extinguished on conversion or maturity. The
equity component is recognised in equity, net of any tax
effects.

When the bond is converted, the relevant equity component
and the carrying amount of the liability component at the
time of conversion are transferred to share capital and share
premium for the shares issued. When the bond is redeemed,
the relevant equity component is transferred to retained
profits.

Current and deferred income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current and deferred
tax. Income tax is recognised in the profit and loss account
except that it relates to items recognised directly in equity
and in which case it is recognised in equity. The current
income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in
the countries/places where the Company and its subsidiaries
and associated company operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts

expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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- NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p)

(q)

Current and deferred income taxes (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated accounts. However, the deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income

tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available

against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and an associated
company except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.

Employee benefits

(i) Pension obligations
The Group participates in a number of defined
contribution retirement schemes in Hong Kong,
Taiwan and various cities in Mainland China where the
Group operates.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions to separately
administered funds on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the funds do not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service
in the current and prior periods. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they
are due and are reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund
or a reduction in the future payments is available.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q) Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan under which the Group entities
receive services from employees as consideration
for equity instruments (share options) of the Group.
The fair value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the share options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed over the vesting period is determined by
reference to the fair value of the share options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market service
and performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and retaining an
employee of the Group entity over a specific period).
Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of share options that
are expected to vest. The total amount expensed is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the period
over which all of the specified vesting conditions are
to be satisfied. At each balance sheet date, the entity
revises its estimates of the number of share options
that are expected to vest based on non-marketing
vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision of original estimates, if any, in the profit
and loss account with a corresponding adjustment to

equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the share options are

exercised.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses with reference to a number of factors
including the Group’s operating results, individual
and market performance and directors’ discretion.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has

created a constructive obligation.
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- NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

(s)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Provisions for restructuring comprise lease
termination penalties, employee termination payments and
anticipated loss on disposal of relevant assets. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow of economic resources will be
required in settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obligation may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for sale of goods and services in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown
net of applicable value-added tax, returns, rebates and

discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured.

Revenue from sales of goods manufactured or traded is
recognised on the transfer of significant risks and rewards
of ownership, which generally coincides with the time when
the goods are delivered to customers and title has passed.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method. When a receivable
is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of
the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount
as interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is

recognised using the original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)

®)

(w)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Government incentives are recognised where there is
reasonable assurance that the incentives will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with.

Franchise and royalty income is recognised on an accrual
basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant

agreements.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive

payment is established.

Vendor rebate is recognised when the rights to receive
payments are established in accordance with the terms of
agreements with vendors.

Handling income is recognised when the services are

rendered.

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the periods of the leases.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor), including
upfront payment made for leasehold land use rights, are
charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis

over the lease periods.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the owners of the Company is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s accounts in the
period in which the dividends are approved by the board of

directors and the owners of the Company.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate

risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk

management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial

markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on

the Group’s financial performance. The Group uses derivative

financial instruments to manage certain risk exposure when

necessary. As at 31 December 2011, the Group did not have any

outstanding derivative financial instruments.
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- NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in China with transactions
primarily settled in RMB, HKD and United States dollar
(USD). The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from future commercial transactions and
recognised financial assets (mainly bank balances and
trade receivables) denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the Group’s entities to which they
relate.

To manage foreign exchange risk arising from commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities, the Group
may use forward foreign exchange contracts when major

fluctuation in the relevant foreign currency is anticipated.

As at 31 December 2011, the post-tax profit of the Group
would have been decreased by approximately HK$819,000
(2010: HK$5,803,000) if RMB had strengthened by 5%
against HKD and USD mainly resulted from foreign
exchange losses on translation of HKD and USD
denominated monetary assets with all other variables held
constant.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk mainly
arising from bank deposits and short-term bank loan bearing
interest at floating rates. The Group is exposed to fair value
interest rate risk arising from the convertible bonds bearing
interest at fixed rates. Management intend to draw short-
term bank loans as to increase flexibility in financing.
The Group will review whether bank loans bearing fixed
or floating rates should be drawn from time to time with
reference to the trend of changes in interest rates. The
Group did not enter into any interest rate swaps to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risks.

As at 31 December 2011, the post-tax profit of the Group
would have been increased/decreased by approximately
HK$17,887,000 (2010: HK$20,484,000) if the interest rates
had been increased/decreased by 100 basis points with all
other variables held constant.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS WE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(¢) Credit risk (o) f5 &R bg

3 W E KR A B (4

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk. The carrying amounts of trade receivables, other
receivables, rental deposits and bank balances stated in
the consolidated balance sheet represents the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial

assets.

The majority of the Group’s trade and other receivables
arose from credit sales to trading customers. The Group
has policies in place to evaluate and monitor the credit
terms and payment history of its customers to ensure
recoverability of trade debts. The Group also reviews the
balance of trade receivables at each balance sheet date to
ensure that adequate provision for uncollectible receivables
was made.

Rental deposits are mainly placed with various landlords
in Mainland China, Taiwan and Hong Kong and are due
to refund upon the expiry of the tenancy agreements and
handover of the leased premises. During the year, the Group
did not experience significant defaults by the landlords.

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010,
substantially all the Group’s bank balances and term
deposits with banks were held in registered financial
institutions located in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Taiwan which management assessed and believed are of
acceptable credit quality. The Group has a policy to limit the
credit exposure to any financial institution and management
does not expect any significant loss arising from non-

performance by these counterparties.

During the years ended 31 December 2011 and 31
December 2010, the Group placed with registered financial
institutions a number of principal-protected structured
deposits which are interest rate-linked principal protected
investments and management has the option of termination
at any time with the counterparties. Management believes
that there is no significant credit risk with respect to such
structured deposits as they were made with registered
financial institutions of no history of default. As at 31
December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the Group did not
hold structured deposits.
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- NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)
(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its
current obligations when they fall due.

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through
the maintenance of prudent ratio regarding the liquidity
structure of the overall assets, liabilities, loans and
commitments of the Group. The Group also maintains
a healthy level of liquid assets and banking facilities to
ensure the availability of sufficient cash flows to meet any
unexpected and material cash requirements in the ordinary
course of business. As at 31 December 2011, the Group had
unutilised banking facilities of HK$173,580,000 (2010:
HK$214,880,000).

The contractual maturity of the Group’s financial liabilities

B H B
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based on the undiscounted cash flows is as follows: BZEHEHIWMBENMT
Between 3 Between Between
Within and 6 months 1 year and
3 months 6 months and 1 year S years Total
=HAE AR E
= Al —f —EELE it
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
T T T Ti6 % Tt
At 31 December 2011 [ S 3
+ZHA=+—H
Trade payables 54 55 JE o M 5k 819,131 - - - 819,131
Other payables JU Al 1 £ % 3 556,116 - - - 556,116
Bank loan - unsecured AT Bk — IR 6,998 - - - 6,998
License fee payables VEEF 5 3T D R - - - 4,138 4,138
Non-current liabilities iR - - - 90 90
Convertible bonds LEYi3¢4 - - - 676,665 676,665
Interest on convertible bonds ¥ 4t Ji¢ &% %5 1 & 10,573 10,573 10,573 30,661 62,380
1,392,818 10,573 10,573 711,554 2,125,518
At 31 December 2010 W ZE—EA
+oH=+—H
Trade payables B 5 IEATHR 3K 577,949 - - - 577,949
Other payables At 8 T HE 3R 364,881 - - - 364,881
Bank loan — unsecured SRAT 3K — LA 11,281 - - - 11,281
License fee payables AT 3 8 HE 2 - - - 3,460 3,460
Non-current liabilities B A R - - - 15,712 15,712
Convertible bonds AR SR - - - 648,725 648,725
Interest on convertible bonds A 4 A 5 S 10,136 10,136 10,136 49,668 80,076
964,247 10,136 10,136 717,565 1,702,084
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS WE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3 W E KR A B (4

(e) ¥ Al bt i 2

(e) Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
as well as maximising returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. There were no changes
in the objectives, policies or processes of capital risk
management during the years ended 31 December 2011 and
31 December 2010.

The Group monitors capital using a net gearing ratio,
which is net debt (being total of bank loans and convertible
bonds, less total cash and bank balances) divided by equity
attributable to owners of the Company. The net gearing

ratios as at the balance sheet dates were as follows:

AR B R A B B R H R PR
A B2 ) 2 R BRSO e ) Ml B 4R R RO
fE(E S HAtL 5 43 2 2

A P B AR SR > Sl0 K AR L 5
B AE AR o AR AR AT RE S R 1] ORIR 3
IS~ 1) P SRR 2R A B AT T B A A
MEFF R R B E ARG M E
FT A=t AR —FF T A
=+t —HIEFER > AR EE - BOLSTHE

A £ B 5% B LR (R RS (BRAT
B B AT R O A B < M SR AT R
) BRLAA A R HEA ARG R4 ) BIEEE
Ao RESAH Z AR

2011 2010

e S e e

HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000

F# T T

Bank loan — unsecured BRAT B — I 6,998 11,281
Convertible bonds Al R 55 605,879 556,622

Less: Cash and bank balances

W B MR AT BR A

(1,795,744) (2,059,674)

Net debt R
Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

AN TR N AL HE 4

(1,182,867)  (1,491,771)

4,035,867 3,124,332

Net cashiF#H 4  Net cashiF H &

The Group has a net cash as at both 31 December 2011 and
31 December 2010. The Group’s strategy is to maintain a
solid capital base to support the operation and development

of its business in the long term.
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- NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment (Note 15). Other non-financial assets
including property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and
land use rights and other intangible assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
The recoverable amounts have been determined based
on value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs to
sell. These calculations require the use of judgments and
estimates.

(b) Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Judgment is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are transactions and calculations during
the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Deferred income tax liabilities on temporary differences
relating to undistributed profits of certain of the Group’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China are not recognised as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries
and management expects it is probable that profits will not
be distributed from these subsidiaries to their foreign holding
companies in the foreseeable future. Management reassessed
its expectation at each balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(o)

(d)

(e)

Depreciation and amortisation

Management determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation/amortisation charges for the Group’s
fixed assets and intangible assets with reference to the
estimated periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of these assets. Management
will revise the depreciation/amortisation charges where
useful lives are different to previously estimated, or it
will write off or write down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual
economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives.
Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable lives
and therefore depreciation/amortisation expense in future

periods.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling prices in the ordinary course of business less
estimated selling expenses. These estimates are based on
the current market condition and historical experience
of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature.
It could change significantly as a result of changes in
economic conditions in places where the Group operates
and changes in customer taste and competitor actions in
response to changes in market conditions. Management

reassesses these estimates at each balance sheet date.

Fair value estimation of available-for-sale
financial assets

Financial instruments carried at fair value are measured
according to the levels of the fair value hierarchy defined as
follows:

(i) Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities;

(i) Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly
(that is, derived from prices); and

(iii) Level 3 — Inputs for the asset or liability that are not

based on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs).

At 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, all the

Group’s available-for-sale financial assets were measured

by level 3 of the fair value measurement hierarchy.
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- NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(e) Fair value estimation of available-for-sale

financial assets (Continued)

The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets is
determined by using various valuation techniques. The
Group uses its judgement to select a variety of methods
such as discounted cash flow and fair value of net assets
attributable to the Group. The assumptions adopted on
projected cash flow are based on management’s best
estimates and valuation of material assets of the investee by
external appraiser was referenced.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing,
distribution and retailing of footwear, apparel and accessories.

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM?”) has been
identified as the executive directors. CODM assesses the
performance of the business from a business unit perspective, i.e.
core brands business, other brands business and manufacturing
business and allocate resources accordingly.

During the year, to better reflect management’s perspective on
segment information, CODM have assessed and redefined the
reportable segments such that core brands business (i.e. self-
owned brands business, “Daphne” and “Shoebox”, in Mainland
China), other brands business (i.e. other self-owned and licensed
brands business) and manufacturing business are reported. The
comparative figures have been restated to conform with the
current year’s presentation.

CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of segment results before finance costs,
amortisation of intangible assets and unallocated corporate
income and expenses. Certain corporate overhead expenses,
including management fee, rental and utilities were reallocated
among individual segments based on estimated consumption.

Revenue from external customers are after elimination of inter-
segment revenue. Inter-segment revenue is charged in accordance
with terms determined and agreed mutually by relevant parties.
Revenue from external customers of core brands business and
other brands business is mainly derived from Mainland China,
Taiwan and Hong Kong and revenue from external customers
of manufacturing business is mainly derived from United States
of America. None of the customers accounted for 10% or more
of the total turnover of the Group during both years ended 31
December 2011 and 31 December 2010.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The Group’s non-current assets, excluding available-for-sale

financial assets and deferred income tax assets, are mainly

located in Mainland China.

B H B

5 rEbE B

ASE T 2 JE B (R] R A R A
JIT A5 B0 R A1) A v R KB

Year ended 31 December 2011
BEZZ A=t R

Corebrands  Other brands Manufacturing  Inter-segment
business business business elimination Unallocated Group
BO RIS HAb R RREER AWNHE KA KM
HK$"000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
it Tl Tit Tl Tt Tl
Revenue from external customers ~ $9b% Fil £ 7,597,051 529,552 450,159 - - 8,576,762
Inter-segment revenue vigidulies 74,014 - 1,003,111 (1,077,125) - -
Total segment revenue By R 7,671,065 529,552 1,453,270 (1,077,125) - 8,576,762
Segment results ViEiES 1,555,120 (64,576) 108,111 (20,636) - 1,578,019
Amortisation of intangible assets T ¥ i R & (6,643)
Unallocated corporate income RAEAFERA 3,000
Unallocated corporate expenses A/ LR 3 % (205,809)
Finance costs K A (46,907)
Share of profit of an associated ~ HEAS — & A v B A
company 21
Profit before income tax Wk i B 2 A 1,322,081
Amortisation of intangible assets T ¥ & R & - 6,643 - - - 6,643
Amortisation of land use rights 340 £l F RE MR 591 - 1,020 - - 1,611
Depreciation of fixed assets Ifl € B YT 146,597 14,127 16,878 - - 177,602
Fair value loss on available-for-sale ¥ &% &2
financial assets AFREEE - - - - 61,872 61,872

Capital expenditure AR 317,464 36,664 39,531 - - 393,659
Segment assets B E 4,969,060 658,967 613,546 - - 6,241,573
Goodwill i 15,079 974 - - - 16,053
Other intangible assets KA - 113,873 - - - 113,873

4,984,139 773,814 613,546 - - 6,371,499
Interest in an associated company 1A — /%8 A 7 Z H £ 3,359
Available-for-sale financial assets I i & & Bh & & 16,624
Deferred income tax assets BB 106,469
Unallocated corporate assets KAMAERE 3,465
Total assets i 6,501,416
Segment liabilities SHbEL 1,130,010 139,014 316,843 - - 1,585,867
Deferred income tax liabilities JEAE B £ 1 19,445
Convertible bonds R R 605,879
Unallocated corporate liabilities A ZMAL A3 £ 58,599
Total liabilities A 2,269,790
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- NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS B H Bt

S  SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5 EER ()

Year ended 31 December 2010
BE-% R A AL

BOROWE OB ERAER A

Core brands Other brands Manufacturing Inter-segment
business business business elimination Group
WL miesEs  HAb R TS i ISk AER
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Tt T T Tt T
Revenue from external customers  $H9ME F L4 5,646,545 409,680 567,615 - 6,623,840
Inter-segment revenue it 50,020 20,666 594,516 (665,202) -
Total segment revenue Bl 5,696,565 430,346 1,162,131 (665,202) 6,623,840
Segment results R 1,006,193 (86) 51,564 5,576 1,063,247
Amortisation of intangible assets % 8 P e (7,171)
Unallocated corporate income FoEAERA 3,005
Unallocated corporate expenses RO ER (87,501)
Fair value loss on derivative EEA Nl v ovd
financial instrument - warrants AFREEEH (77,328)
Finance costs Fs AR (44,7199
Share of profit of an HEAG — s 2 A 2
associated company 618
Profit before income tax CYRET IR 850,161
Amortisation of intangible assets Y EES - 7,171 - - 7,171
Amortisation of land use rights T e 753 - 640 - 1,393
Depreciation of fixed assets i BRI E 106,359 11,063 16,234 - 133,636
Capital expenditure AR L 232,266 16,445 32,609 - 281,320
Segment assets IR 3,733,052 477,137 582,296 - 4,792,485
Goodwill ik 15,079 933 - - 16,012
Other intangible assets Kb G - 113,877 - - 113,877
3,748,131 591,947 582,296 - 4922374
Interest in an associated company R—HEE ARz R 3338
Available-for-sale financial assets [ HESBERE 63,183
Deferred income tax assets REfGR AR 56,388
Unallocated corporate assets FORAEEE 3,767
Total assets HERE 5,049,050
Segment liabilities SHRER 780,467 86,868 272,958 - 1,140,293
Deferred income tax liabilities EERFHAR 5171
Convertible bonds TR A 556,622
Unallocated corporate liabilities FARAEAR 39,361
Total liabilities BAMK 1,741,447
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS I H B} 5

6 OTHER INCOME 6 HAtW A
2011 2010
“E - DEFFF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T#x THETT
Interest income FE A 63,143 37,151
Government incentives RS #l B5 35,569 30,488
Franchise and royalty income TR TRE R BB REILA 7,588 6,283
Income derived from an available- AH ] A VA E 2 A
for-sale financial asset 3,000 3,000
Vendor rebate B 77 [l 4n 1,001 957
Handling income FHE WA 919 662
Gross rental income FH 4 il A B8 1,010 350
Others HoAth, 9,124 9,978
121,354 88,869
7 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS - NET 7 Al OFH) s — 8
2011 2010
TR DR R
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
F#x T
Fair value loss on available- AT ESMEE A T EMEER
for-sale financial assets (61,872) -
Loss on disposal of fixed assets B [ R 2 1R (13,558) (12,392)
Net exchange gain [ 58,4 4 15 HE 1,227 14,628
Net gain on early termination of PR R O R 2 i A I AR
a license right - 9,493
(74,203) 11,729
8 FINANCE COSTS 8 BB AR
2011 2010
TR DR R
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
F#x T
Interest on convertible bonds A 15 2 R B 45,451 41,583
Interest on a bank loan SRATE A S 263 677
Interest on license fee payables JREASH A5 5 001 P A 2 1)L 625 1,827
Interest on other non-current liabilities Ho At FE i B & AR R 568 712
46,907 44,799
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- NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS B H Bt

9 PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9 BB 45 Bi Hir £ A
Profit before income tax is stated after charging/(crediting) the B TS BT AR EANER 7 (GEA) TAI40H -
following:

2011 2010

e =

HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000

T T#s 7T

Amortisation of land use rights M A R S 1,611 1,393

Amortisation of license rights FE T RE S8 8 2,873 3,774

Amortisation of trademarks [ERES: 37 3,770 3,397

Auditors’ remuneration 12 BRI 4> 6,067 5,769
Cost of inventories sold including BHAEENA

provision for slow-moving inventories 1 FE i 8 A7 2 B A
of HK$48,024,000 (2010: write-back of ~ 48,024,000% 7T ( & — &4 :

provision of HK$16,835,000) 548 17 16,835,00095 7€) 2,765,217 2,410,482
Depreciation of fixed assets E e B EITE 177,602 133,656
Employee benefits expense (Note 14) 1 B A R B 3 (BT 14) 1,219,393 836,555
Operating lease rentals (including o B2

concessionaire fees) in respect of AT B4 (G

land and buildings 1 5 45 6 s ) 1,686,332 1,313,866
Net provision for/(write-back of) B 5 I WA 3 e (R A,

impairment of trade receivables (P38 £ 1m0 435 ) 3 423 (156)

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10 P 5 Bi B X
2011 2010
“E - ZE-FF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T#T THE T
Current tax LA 409,100 248,030
Under provision in prior years AR N R 1,215 1,654
Deferred tax (Note 32) IR S L H (MY 5E32) (32,965) (11,134)
377,350 238,550
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10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 10

The income tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs

from the theoretical amount that would arise using the applicable

Fie 75 Bt BA 32 (#)

A A [ A TR R B A5 0 AT 1 1) 2 P A o BRI R
JR A G T BT B 2 70 T B 8 T 5 2 P i

domestic tax rates of the Group entities as follows: A7 EFT -
2011 2010
e
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T#T T#IT
Profit before income tax W BT 15 T 22 A 1,322,081 850,161
Less: Share of profit of an associated W AL — IR
company 4 ) A (421) (618)
1,321,660 849,543
Income tax calculated at domestic tax A BB R i 7 A
rates applicable to profits in the A7 R 2 B
respective countries/places a2 TR B 302,019 193,763
Tax concessions B IE I e (126) (56)
Deferred tax assets previously not AR R 2
recognised 5 S B T & (536) -
Income not subject to tax YRR A (6,575) (11,167)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes A~ AJ 1 F{ BH 32 39,020 41,998
Tax losses for which no deferred tax o Tl R A8 ol TH
assets recognised Z Bl R 1,026 672
Utilisation of previously unrecognised By A A AR R
tax losses Z B T s 18 (147) (3.019)
Under provision in prior years AR BN 2 1,215 1,654
Derecognition of previously recognised — #% 11 il 52 38 A £ #5321 4T
deferred income tax assets Fr 5Bl & 177 2,733
Withholding taxes on royalties and DU RER TP B K e
profits appropriated by subsidiaries RFF ) 2 7] 43 Uk
in Mainland China B 2 AL 41,277 11,972
Income tax expense I 1585 B 3¢ 377,350 238,550

The weighted average domestic tax rate was 23% (2010: 23%).

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2010: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.
Income tax on profits arising outside Hong Kong has been
calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the
rates of income tax prevailing in the countries/places in which the
Group operates.

79

TINRET-34) i 5 B 338 1523 % (—F—F4F 1 23%) o

A IR v RSB T 4R A R E R BL 2R 2 16.5%
(T —FHE 1 16.5%) 55 o FEELIAMBE 2
BRI A3 B OB AE A FHE B BLR] > 4 AR
S S N AE B R W I 2 B AT BT 15 B R 5t

oo

Annual Report 2011
S



- NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Provision for China corporate income tax was calculated based
on the statutory tax rate of 25% (2010: 25%) on the assessable
income of each of the Group’s entities except that certain
subsidiaries of the Company operating in China are eligible for
certain tax exemptions and concessions including tax holiday and
reduced corporate income tax rate during the year. Accordingly,
the China corporate income tax for such subsidiaries has been

provided for after taking into account of these tax exemptions and

concessions.

Pursuant to the China corporate income tax laws, 10%
withholding tax is levied on all foreign investors, except that
only 5% is levied for foreign investors which are incorporated in
Hong Kong, in respect of dividend distributions arising from a
foreign investment enterprise’s profit earned after 31 December
2007. As at 31 December 2011, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits on the Group’s subsidiaries in
Mainland China amounted to approximately HK$1,974,720,000
(31 December 2010: HK$1,486,648,000) with deferred income
tax liabilities of approximately HK$98,852,000 (31 December
2010: HK$74,332,000) not recognised. The Company has pre-
determined a dividend declaration policy in respect of its foreign-
invested subsidiaries established in Mainland China and deferred
income tax liabilities are provided to the extent that profits are
expected to be distributed by the subsidiaries in the foreseeable

future.

Pursuant to the China corporate income tax laws, withholding tax
at a reduced rate of 7% by treaty is applied to the Group’s entities
incorporated in Hong Kong for royalties received or receivable.

11 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS

OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to owners of the Company is dealt with in
the accounts of the Company to the extent of HK$251,031,000

(2010: HK$187,984,000).
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
Group’s profit attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$933,063,000 (2010: HK$595,510,000) and the weighted
average of 1,638,204,932 (2010: 1,637,892,384) ordinary shares
in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
adjusted profit attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$978,514,000 (2010: HK$637,093,000) and the adjusted
weighted average of 1,873,549,453 (2010: 1,865,789,759)

B H B

12 1% & A

SN NN DNE ¥ T NN E T RN RN
45 M % F1933,063,000% 7T (

1,637,892,384/1%) #t4 -

TR AR
595,510,000% o) M 4F A E 17
HE 7 2 #51,638,204,932 8% (—

B
T B

5 R 0 i ) AR R S S T 0 R R R AT
J S HEE e R S M AR o AR A R A 0 ]

N AL 21 F1978,514,000% 7T (

(A

637,093,000 7T ) S 48 i % 158 1 i A T 45 3

ordinary shares after taking into consideration of conversion of 1,873,549,453 /5% (=& — %4 : 1,865,789,759
the convertible bonds and exercise of share options and warrants. JB) FHEA o
2011 2010
TR DR R
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T# 0 T T
Profit attributable to owners of the AN AR N L 2R
Company 933,063 595,510
Interest on convertible bonds ] %A 25 2 FE 45,451 41,583
Adjusted profit attributable to owners of &8 F# AN T HEA A MEAS 2L
the Company 978,514 637,093
2011 2010
I . e S S8
Number of Number of
shares shares
it v B H i1 B B
Weighted average number of ordinary OB AT 2 M RE - Yy B H
shares in issue 1,638,204,932 1,637,892,384
Effect of conversion of convertible bonds 52,4 1] # i {5 55 2 5 28 178,510,572 178,510,572
Effect of exercise of share options A7 {6 B A 2 ?ﬁ %‘ 10,394,297 49,386,803
Effect of exercise of warrants AT 5B G 38 2 5% 46,439,652 -
Weighted average number of ordinary TR 8 VR T R I AR R A
shares adjusted for effect of dilution TIRE -2 4 1,873,549,453 1,865,789,759

For the year ended 31 December 2011, 5,100,000 share options
outstanding are anti-dilutive and are ignored in the calculation of
diluted earnings per share since the exercise prices of the share
options were higher than the average market prices during the
year.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the warrants are anti-

dilutive and are ignored in the calculation of diluted earnings per

share.
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- NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

B H B

13 DIVIDENDS 13 G
2011 2010
R
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T#t T T
Interim dividend, paid, of HK8.0 cents CU AT o 1A 18 L g 35 28 8.0 Al
(2010: HK6.0 cents) per (ZF—F4F - 6.0%Al) 131,031 98,274
ordinary share
Final dividend, proposed, of P IR AR B 5 A 1 3 9.0 s il
HK9.0 cents (2010: HK6.0 cents) (ZF—F4F : 6.0Ml)
per ordinary share 147,795 98,274
278,826 196,548

At a meeting held on 19 March 2012, the Board proposed a final
dividend of HK9.0 cents per share in respect of the year ended
31 December 2011 to be approved by the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The proposed dividend is
not reflected as a dividend payable in these accounts but will
be reflected as an appropriation of retained profits for the year
ending 31 December 2012.

14 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 14

Employee benefits expense, including directors’ emoluments,
represents:

Mo HEZATIHREG &L HE
SEEARE F——4F+ _H=1T—HILFE
JE VR A AT 9. OB ALy > 145 7 M Ji e o3
R b R R R o SRR B R E
RSIE AR B IR A S, Mg IR E — % —
A= — B IR 2 AR A A

1 B i A B 3¢
1 EURR R B S0 (56 3 4 ) 9

2011 2010

“E - ZFFF

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

T T T

Wages, salaries, allowances and bonuses L& ~ # 4 ~ H: [ & AE4L 1,127,416 747,051
Defined contribution pension costs FE B FOR IR 4 gl A

(Note (a)) (it 5E(a)) 45,916 30,915

Share-based payment expense DA B 53 5 LB 2 A 3B 52 46,061 58,589

1,219,393 836,555

(a) Defined contribution pension costs
As at both 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, no
forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future.

Contributions payable as at 31 December 2011 of
approximately HK$9,226,000 (2010: HK$5,811,000) are
included in other payables and accrued charges.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS WE

14 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 14 1 B #& 1 B 32 (%)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Directors’ emoluments (b) FHHE
The remuneration of each director of the Company for the PEETZH = —HIEFE s AARS
year ended 31 December is set out below: EHEZHMWT
Defined Share-
contribution based
pension Discretionary payment
Fees Salaries costs bonuses expense Total
A 4
€ Bk Bz
4 e BRERA  WEEL HEEE it

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$000 HKS$’ 000
Tt Tt T T T Ti#x

2011 R —F
Name of director ERUEA
Mr Chen Ying-Chich B IEA S A - 4,160 19 11,053 9,351 24,583
Mr Chang Chih-Kai RIS E - 1,869 - 5,625 3,799 11,293
Mr Chang Chih-Chiao REBRE - 1,869 - 5,625 3,215 10,709
Mr Chen Hsien Min B IR g 4 3,461 513 14 30,000 7,014 41,002
Mr Chen Tommy Yi-Hsun BB 4 - 988 7 7,500 2,446 10,941
Mr Hsiao Hsi-Ming WEM A 72 - - - - 7
Mr Huang Shun-Tsai G ot 2 A 7 - - - - 7
Mr Kuo Jung-Cheng PR e 72 - - - - 7
Mr Lee Ted Tak Tai EEREE 121 - - - - 121
3,798 9,399 40 59,803 25,825 98,865
2010 CE-FF
Name of director EREH
Mr Chen Ying-Chich PR e - 4,010 2 5,750 13,396 23,178
Mr Chang Chih-Kai REHEE - 804 6 2,077 5442 8,329
Mr Chang Chih-Chiao REELEE - 806 - 2,077 4,605 7,488
Mr Chen Hsien Min PRE R4 - 3,994 2 5,750 10,047 19,813
Mr Hsiao Hsi-Ming AR 72 - - - - 7
Mr Huang Shun-Tsai B 72 - - - - 72
Mr Kuo Jung-Cheng BEREE 72 - - - - 72
216 9,614 50 15,654 33,490 59,024
During the year ended 31 December 2011, a discretionary wEE -+ _HA=+—HIL&F
bonus of HK$30,000,000 was approved to be payable to Mr JE s v A B RS R ST A IR AT R [ AR S A
Chen Hsien Min upon his retirement. 191 /€ 430,000,000 7T °
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14 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 14 1@ 5 & A B 32 (4])
(CONTINUED)
(c) Five highest paid individuals (c) hAmm#HH AL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest AR > AREEE N s AN LA
in the Group for the year include five (2010: four) directors BB L) B > HMEFEE
whose emoluments are presented above. The salaries and CUA B SO - MR E - FFE T A
bonuses and share-based payment expense payable to =t HIEFEEA LA -2 N2
the remaining one individual during the year ended 31 G B AC AL T2 UL B0y 7 8 22 AT KB S
December 2010 were HK$4,001,000 and HK$2,800,000 Al £54,001,0007 JC % 2,800,000% JG
respectively.
No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors A AFE T 7 A0 ) B 5 w44 e 3 A SR
or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to LA 4 > VBB WSR2 I A AR L8] - 5K
join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss VB B N AAS 4 8] 65 22 4% il il Bk IRk A 4 » 4
of office. No directors or the five highest paid individuals Al > 4% 68 55 0l 44 B i o A 44 4 i B
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the year. IFi] 2 kAT Ao T 4
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15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

B H B

15 EIEEE

Group
A
License
Goodwill rights Trademarks Total
PR R R ik Ha gt
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Tt Tl Tl Tl
(Note)
(P &E)
Cost &N E
At 1 January 2010 A FE—FAE—~—H 25,685 15,154 - 40,839
Exchange adjustment i 53, 37 2% 26 1,036 2,072 3,134
Additions NE - 7,992 - 7,992
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B o J 2 ) 907 36,816 71,760 109,483
Termination of a license right H R P R - (15,154) - (15,154)
At 31 December 2010 N_E-REFZH=F—H 26,618 45,844 73,832 146,294
Exchange adjustment e 51, 77 %% 41 1,837 3,180 5,058
Additions RE - 1,966 - 1,966
At 31 December 2011 N E -+ H=+—H 26,659 49,647 77,012 153,318
Accumulated amortisation and g 1) QTR
impairment
At 1 January 2010 N ZFE—FFE—H—H 10,606 3,358 - 13,964
Exchange adjustment e b, 77 - 50 99 149
Amortisation for the year N A JE R 8 - 3,774 3,397 7,171
Acquisition of subsidiaries Wi B J 2 ) - 281 - 281
Termination of a license right H R R T R - (5,160) - (5,160)
At 31 December 2010 WoE—FFE+ZH=+—H 10,606 2,303 3,496 16,405
Exchange adjustment e 5, 7 % - 120 224 344
Amortisation for the year N A 5 B - 2,873 3,770 6,643
At 31 December 2011 WoE——%+=-H=1+—H 10,606 5,296 7,490 23,392
Net book value T ¥ (B
At 31 December 2011 hoE——EtH=1—H 16,053 44,351 69,522 129,926
At 31 December 2010 N E-EFEF =+ —H 16,012 43,541 70,336 129,889
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- NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Note: Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating unit (“CGU”)

identified according to the operating segment. The Group performs
impairment tests on goodwill annually, or more frequently if there is
any indication that it may be impaired, by comparing the recoverable
amount to the carrying amount as at the balance sheet date. The
recoverable amount of the CGU was determined based on value-in-
use calculations. These calculations used cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a three-year
period. The pre-tax discount rate and the estimated weighted average
annual sales growth rate after the 3-year budgeted period applied to the
cash flow projections was approximately 20% and ranged from 10%
to 20% respectively. The budgeted gross profit margin and net profit
margin were determined by the management for the CGU based on past

performance and its expectations for market development. Management

B H B

15 B & E (4)

b -

T 4 T 5 AR R A 43 A ) 4y 2 AR AR T B 4
A B ([ B G 7E A BT |) o A 2 [l 7 22 1
AF (Tl G S B AT B8 (B 2 AT AT B & > BN AR )
PEWE B 7 ik B R &5 A B AT i () 4 48 B
VR T (AR B o B 4 A A B 2 Al i ) 4 Ty
02 {68 R (B (000 i S o W wE AR Y 0 AR R A S
e 2 =AE A B A 2 &R E EHIE S - A
I = A B T 0 B R R T A ) 2 Bk
T T U 5L 3R A S o R 1 35 4 R G S R SR )
A B #120% K 10% 2520% o B4 i R A 2 THE
BRI R &l R T 4 B 0 A 2% B % L
TH 35 0 2 TN E o LG MM - A bk
AT ] B G A% it oy B AT o] 5 B ) R > R
o S S 2 R T (A O T i [ 4

believes that any reasonably foreseeable change in any of the above key
assumptions would not cause the carrying amount of goodwill to exceed
the recoverable amount significantly.

16 LAND USE RIGHTS 16 1 3t i I W

Group
AR
2011 2010
SE M CEEE
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Tt THIT
Cost FAAE
At 1 January w—H—H 71,299 62,568
Exchange adjustment [ifE 5, 3 3,139 2,479
Additions NE - 3,820
Transferred from fixed assets i [ A - 2,432
At 31 December wrt—H=1+—H 74,438 71,299
Accumulated amortisation BT £
At 1 January w—H—H 20,963 19,070
Exchange adjustment T 50, 3 48 668 500
Amortisation for the year A AT B 4 B 1,611 1,393
At 31 December wt—_HA=1+—H 23,242 20,963
Net book value W T VR (E
At 31 December wtr=—H=1+—H 51,196 50,336
At 1 January A—J1—H 50,336 43,498

As at both 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, all land use
rights were held outside Hong Kong on leases of between 10 to 50

W oFE—— A=t —H R A
T H=4—H > Brg b A ik L
SN E A > A WI105504F -

years.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS HE H Bt &
17 FIXED ASSETS 17 [ € & &
Group
KM
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold  Construction- Plant and and Motor
Buildings improvements  in-progress machinery equipment vehicles Total
il W
By HENEEB FRIE  RERES  EERRH Ol Hat
HKS’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS 000
T Tt T T T T T
Cost FUAR (G
At 1 January 2010 REF-FE-f—H 413443 342,363 14,298 138,310 148,051 £214 1,098,679
Exchange adjustment [ % 15,886 15,506 1,535 5359 5137 1,598 45,601
Additions RE 36,324 14501 45,608 7852 30274 5,709 272,968
Acquisition of subsidiaries TR I A - 8,794 - - 3,110 339 12,043
Transfer g 718 431 (5.47) - 148 - -
Transferred to land use rights AL - - (2432) - - - (2432)
Disposals i - (57,584) - (5,085) (14,003) (5,168) (81,930)
At 31 December 2010 REZ-ZEFZA=1-0 466,431 458,601 53,762 146,436 175,001 44,692 1,345,149
Exchange adjustment 3 21,366 18,155 2,09 6,838 7823 2,033 58,305
Additions FE 24,255 211,381 30,787 11,601 62,043 7602 349,669
Transfer E 35,131 2,084 43.257) - 5,142 - -
Disposals tE - (180,244) - (3.825) 9512) (173) (195,313)
At 31 December 2011 REF——F+ZA=1—R 547,183 510,877 45382 161,050 240,123 52,505 1,557,810
Accumulated depreciation Ziriik
At 1 January 2010 REF-F4—H—H 69,641 233,592 - 120,632 83,290 30,930 538,085
Exchange adjustment S 2,770 10274 - 4730 3015 1,129 2,178
Acquisition of subsidiaries YR R A ] - 3,909 - - 1,765 164 5,838
Charge for the year KEETE 9,750 92873 - 6,277 20438 4318 133,636
Disposals it & - (43416) - (4.929) (12,251) 4862) (65,438)
At31 December 2010 REF-FEFZA=1-A 82,161 29723 - 126,710 96,517 31,679 634,299
Exchange adjustment W 5 3,803 10421 - 5,968 4216 1423 25,831
Charge for the year KRB 12280 118,390 - 8,176 33,393 5,363 177,602
Disposals tE - (166,357) - (3,762) (7926) (1539) (179,384)
At31 December 2011 RoZ——F+ZA=1-A 98,244 259,686 - 137,092 126,200 36,926 658,148
Net book value e
At 31 December 2011 REF——F+ZA=1—R 448939 251,191 45382 23958 114523 15,669 899,662
At31 December 2010 RoZ-FEFZA=1-0 384,270 161,369 53,762 19,726 78,710 13013 710,850
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18 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18 WM& A w2 #E
Company
A 7
2011 2010
SE A E R
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
F#x THIT
Unlisted investments, at cost JEEHHE > $EMAE 368,822 360,635
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 NERER FE——Ft+ A=t HZFE
December 2011: [6F J&& N 7] -
Place of Particulars
incorporation/ of issued/paid- Interest  Principal
Name operation up capital held activities
B3 A BT ¥ Pt #§
E4 B JBe A ¥ 4% B FEEE
%
Aee International Ltd. ® China US$8,580,000 59.96  Distribution of footwear
TEMENEE (LE) ARA A ] 8,580,000 JC and accessories

73 B RS E i BT

Alldevelop Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 each 100 Investment holding
e IR 1B R T (1 35 o0 2 Ry B
Cheng Lin Shuyang Shoes Co. Ltd. ® China US$500,000 100 Processing of footwear
R EI R A RA R ® Gl 500,000 JC Jin TR
Colossus Asia Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary 59.96  Retail distribution of
S5 RE A BR A ) i shares of HK$1 each footwear and
100/ %5 i 1 {E accessories
1 7T 2 % 78 ik Ty SRR
PanREs
Dafu Footwear Co., Ltd. Hanjiang China US$3,180,000 90  Manufacture of
Putian City @ LY 3,180,0003 ¢ footwear
HHT LKA R AR s R
Dasheng Footwear Co., Ltd. China US$4,285,700 100 Manufacture of
Putian City ® H 4,285,700 G footwear
HHTRL R E A R A A 0 B
Da Shunda Commercial and Trading China RMB50,000,000 59.96  Trading of footwear
Co., Ltd. ® rh 50,000,000 A E and accessories
R T 55 A B /] © B S A
Daphne Korea Co. Ltd. Korea KRW300,000,000 100 Research and
i 300,000,000% & development of
fashion design
F5 I ) %
Daphne International Holdings Limited S8
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

18 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

B H B

18 i Bt 2 Wl 2 % & (4])

(CONTINUED)
Place of Particulars
incorporation/ of issued/paid- Interest  Principal
Name operation up capital held activities
s M CHAT B i §%
4 B B AR 5 A MEdE  FEER
%
Daphne Marketing Co., Ltd. Taiwan NTD300,000,000 92 Retail distribution of
JEWT 8 5 B A A R 2 ) =N 300,000,000 & footwear and
accessories
T oy 8 R i
T e
Daxin Footwear Co., Ltd. Putian City ® China US$1,500,000 100 Processing of footwear
T I A LK RS A PR A eile 1,500,0005 7T T EERTE
Daxing Shoe Material Co., Ltd. China US$1,499,925 100  Manufacture of footwear
Hanjiang Putian City ® [ 1,499,925% 7t B R
F FH T S8R VLK B B A PR )™
Despina Fashion (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. ® China RMB20,000,000 100 Distribution of apparel
BLIRIEE (i) FRA F© H 20,000,000 A [ # and accessories
5 I Al B e
Full Pearl International Limited British Virgin Islands 3,294 shares of US$1 each 59.96  Investment holding and
EZEBEARA T e IR 3,204 % 5 B T {E 195 70 trading of footwear
Z ety and accessories
BB P N B
EE i B T A
Fuzhou Da Yue Footwear Co. Ltd. ® China US$300,000 100 Processing of footwear
N K R RS R A © Y 300,0003 7T T EESHE
Gentlefit Trading Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares 100 Export trading of
W 5 A RA R s of HK$1 each; footwear, investment
13,055,667 non-voting and trademarks
deferred shares of holding
HKS$1 each @ HEEMEOEY
100/ B e T {E 17 T 2 B RARA AR
w5 13,055,667
(53 I TR ERR STV
I B R A R
Guang Ze Da Yi Footwear Co., Ltd. ® China US$300,000 100 Processing of footwear
EEREEEARA A i 300,000 7T i RS
Jiangxi Dachuan Footwear Co., Ltd. ® China US$1,400,000 100 Processing of footwear
TLPYRIEESEA R A F® Y 1,400,000% 7T LB
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- NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS B H Bt

18 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18 M8 A w2 BE (4)

(CONTINUED)
Place of Particulars
incorporation/ of issued/paid- Interest  Principal
Name operation up capital held activities
Ak i AL, CEAT B it §i
H T 3 i A% 5 MR FEEH
%
Jiangxi Da Qian Footwear Co. Ltd. ® China US$300,000 100 Processing of footwear
TLPIR T 836 AR H 300,000 T Jin T8
Modern City Development Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares 100 Investment holding
5 B A R A R 7tk of HK$1 each; G
10,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HK$1 each @
100 5 FBE T {60198 7T 2
& M 5 10,000/
HRE{E 1T
I B R A R
Prime Success (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands 5,000,000 shares of 100 Investment holding
S R US$0.01 each BEHER
5,000,000/ % it
I {£10.015¢ 7T 2 JBE A7y
Putian Hanjiang Footwear Co., Ltd. ® China US$6,000,000 75 Manufacture of footwear
H RIS A R AR el 6,000,000 7T R HERUE
Shanghai Guang Wei Industry & China US$4,600,000 87.8  Manufacture of footwear
Commerce Co., Ltd. @ LilEd 4,600,000 7T B R
EEbEEEARAR®
Shoebox Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 95  Investment and
MR FROA PR ) 7 ik ordinary shares of trademarks holding
HK$1 each BOE A AR
10,0008 45 1 1 (i
1 0 2 3l i
Taizhou Rong Wei Shoes Co. Ltd. ® China US$1,000,000 100 Processing of footwear
MRS RAFO W 1,000,000 7¢ fin TR
Victoria Success Investment Co., Ltd. ® China US$30,000,000 100  Distribution of footwear
KB E (B A BRA A EE 30,000,000 JC and accessories and
investment holding
i $ SR i e A
AR BB HE IR
Victoria Success (Shanghai) Limited ® China US$23,000,000 100  Manufacture of footwear
KB (i) HRA RO g 23,000,000 7T B IS

Daphne International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

18 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

B H B

18 i Bt 2 Wl 2 % & (4])

(CONTINUED)
Place of Particulars
incorporation/ of issued/paid- Interest  Principal
Name operation up capital held activities
Ak AR S o #R Jit F¢
% B B JBe A 5 1 BEf: REEHK
%
Victoria Success Shoes (Suqian) China RMB3,000,000 100 Processing of footwear
Co. Ltd. ® H 3,000,000 A B ¥ T LB
KRR (158) ARAH®
Winson Union Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary 100 Investment holding
AR WA BR A A s shares of HK$1 each G R
10,000 5 i 1 (B
135 0 2 8 4 i
Yangzhou Quanwei Industry & China US$700,570 100 Processing of footwear
Commerce Co., Ltd. ® i 700,570 I Jon R E
mMEEEFRARO
Zhumadian Victoria Success China US$500,000 100 Processing of footwear
Footwear Co., Ltd. ® i 500,000 JG T LB
W5 I Ak B A BRA R ®
EEME R A R Ao China RMB250,000,000 95  Distribution of footwear,
Y 250,000,000 A & ¥ apparel and accessories
e i % i A4
ERME (FE) ARARO China RMB5,121,975 100 Distribution of footwear,
H 5,121,975 AR ¥ apparel and accessories

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

These companies were established in China in the form of equity joint

ventures.

These companies were established in China in the form of wholly
foreign-owned enterprises.

Other than investment in Prime Success (BVI) Limited and Full Pearl
International Limited which are held directly by the Company, all
subsidiaries shown above are held indirectly by the Company.

The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no rights to dividends,
nor rights to receive notice, nor rights to attend and vote at any general
meeting of the respective companies, nor rights to participate in any

distribution on winding up.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.
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&

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

%A N T S A R ST 2 R A

RN F S T B B SL 2 A AN AR 2

[% A Prime Success (BVI) Limited & & 2 [ 5 4 (R
WA ZBEETIHARN R HERAS > L5 A H
Al B JBS 2 ¥4 BB AR AN ] R R A -

A3 S5 A S IR 003 o b SR RO B ) 2 S
S IR 2 A Al RO 7 4 e R PR ROR
Il A BT e A T A G A IR U S 22 B
FEAT 3R -

5 B T 2 ) A A% A P A AT I [ ME SO A £ R
A R o
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- NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS B H Bt

19 AMOUNT DUE FROM A SUBSIDIARY - 19 JE W — ] Bi )& 2 W] Bk 3K — A 2 ]
COMPANY
The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and JARE s — FHT 5 2 ) MR K 5 KA~ A L s IR
repayable on demand. JE B SR AE R o
20 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATED 20 A—HBEBEAFRZRE
COMPANY
Group
N |
2011 2010
R CFEE
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
T T 0
Share of net asset JREAG & A 3,359 3,338
Unlisted investment, at cost FELETHHRE > A E 2,340 2,340
Details of the associated company as at 31 December 2011 are as Ao B ——4E+"H=+—H > B 625
follows: HEr -
Place of Particulars Interest
incorporation/ of paid-up held
Name operation capital indirectly  Principal activity
FE M R S i 5
EA ¥ b B L 2R I AR 5 1 AR  EEER
%0
Dayong Shoe Material Co., Ltd. China RMB5,457,000 30  Manufacture of shoe
Hanjiang Putian City Rl 5,457,000 A\ & HE materials
Y FHTT I LR A A PR A Rk B R
A summary of financial information of the associated company is Bhas N a2z R ERREN T
as follows:
2011 2010
I e N 5
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
Tt THIT
Assets EE 10,691 11,316
Liabilities =K 439 965
Revenues A 13,990 12,479
Profit B 1,404 2,061
Daphne International Holdings Limited 92
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21 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 21 WHHESMEE

ASSETS
Group
AL HE
2011 2010
I .
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
Tt THIT
Unlisted equity investments, JE B EARBE > A TEE (@) 16,624 33,624
at fair value (Note (a))
Unlisted redeemable convertible preferred FE | 77 nJ [ [0] w] 46 Ji% (8 52 B > % A P (H
shares, at fair value (Note (b)) (Bt 5E (b)) - 29,559
16,624 63,183

A B e L D T S B M RHE

Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in the
following currencies

Group

A4
2011 2010
I e
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
F#x THIT
USD *7C - 29,559
RMB AR 16,624 33,624
16,624 63,183

Group

A
2011 2010
e
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
F#x THIT
At 1 January w—H—H 63,183 33,624
Addition AR 15,313 29,559

Fair value loss on available-for-sale al A R E 2 N TEE R
financial assets (61,872) -
At 31 December WA=+ —H 16,624 63,183
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21 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Included in the unlisted equity investments are 30% interests in
an equity joint venture in Mainland China with a carrying value of
HK$16,000,000 (2010: HK$33,000,000). Since the Group has no
significant influence in the operational and financial decisions of
the investee, the directors considered the investment as an available-
for-sale financial asset. The Group has signed an agreement with the
major shareholder of the investee to secure an annual payment of
HK$3,000,000 for the year in lieu of the profit sharing based on equity
interest held. During the year ended 31 December 2011, a fair value loss
of HK$17,000,000 was recognised for the unlisted equity investment.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group made an additional
investment of HK$15,313,000 in an unlisted redeemable convertible
preferred shares of which the total cost of investment amounted to
HK$44,872,000. As at 31 December 2011, the directors considered the
financial position and prospect of the unlisted redeemable convertible
preferred shares and determined the fair value of it to be nil. A fair value
loss of HK$44,872,000 was charged to the profit and loss accounts.

B H B

21 W SR E ()

W5 -

(a)

(d)

FEMBAREQIEPEAE—-MAEELEZ
30%HE 3 - BRI (5 £416,000,000% 76 (& — &
41 33,000,000%570) o B A S RER B E
INEZ B S ROR AT R BE
H RGBS S RUE o AR 4R B BB %
G T 2 M AHE ST IR > A4 URE3,000,000
W5 0 2 BRIE > RUAC R 14 T 15 R HE o I A o
HEFZ——HE A= —HIEEE O
IE 7 A B T 52 17,000,00095 762 15 {H s
;}E °

WHE - E——FEt+ =t —HIREE
A% £ i JE b Tl mT B I AT 6 R 4 Ot A AR A 4R
¥515,313,000% JC > 48 4% & LA £544,872,000%5
JC e AT E——4EF T H = —H > EHEEE
I I T T B ] T 0 R R O e 2 WA SR D B i
Pl H AR AE 26 % o A TR AE 5 144,872,000
T BRI 25 RN 8 o

22 INVENTORIES 22 8

Group

YN
2011 2010
R SRR
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
T T T
Raw materials JE A Fe 44,097 39,057
Work-in-progress TE 70,662 43,505
Finished goods R 1,943,767 1,001,746
2,058,526 1,084,308

Inventories are stated net of provisions for impairment of
HK$146,143,000 (2010: HK$94,260,000) as at 31 December
2011.

23 TRADE RECEIVABLES

BRoF——F T A =10 FFEIHR
1715 WA 3 H#5146,143,0000 0 (& —F 4
94,260,000 7T) 51 i -

23 B 5 BE WO K

Group
A4 M
2011 2010
I .
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
F#x THIT
Trade receivables & o A T 3K 276,217 212,151
Less: Provision for impairment of A I R ]
receivables (1,914) (1,721)
Trade receivables — net & o TS T 3k — T AH 274,303 210,430

Daphne International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

23 TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Movement of provision for impairment of trade receivables is as

B H B sk

23 B 5 MEWOR sk (4)

B 5 SR R B (L 138 A 2 S B 9

follows:
Group
A4
2011 2010
R e
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Tt Tt
At 1 January w—H—H 1,721 2,057
Provision for impairment IERERE 580 -
Write-back of provision for impairment — J5 {EL 4§ 4 4% [l (157) (156)
Receivables written off during the year A DR B A AE S R i ] 2
as uncollectible JRE AT e 2K (230) (180)
At 31 December wt—_H=+—H 1,914 1,721

The ageing analysis of trade receivables by invoice date is as

B 5E H O 2 B 5 I WORR IR 8 23 AT

follows: T

Group

A &
2011 2010
o e
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T T T
0 - 30 days 0%30H 215,865 193,902
31 - 60 days 31260H 40,294 11,066
61 —90 days 61290H 9,762 2,331
91 — 120 days 91%120H 4,422 1,677
121 - 180 days 1212180 H 1,974 430
181 - 360 days 1814360 H 818 895
Over 360 days 360 H DL F 1,168 129
274,303 210,430
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- NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

23 TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2011, trade receivables of HK$237,077,000
(2010: HK$175,479,000) were neither past due nor impaired.
These related to a number of independent customers for whom
there was no relevant history of default. The ageing analysis
by past due date of trade receivables that were past due but not

impaired is as follows:

B H B

23 B 5 ME WO sk (4)

RoF——F+ " H=1+—H  EHEIRIEX
237,077,000 70 (& —FA4F : 175,479,000%
JC) M R A B B B o 5% 4 S IE T B £
S A Bk 2 B F T o @l B # e
a0 1 E S (2 B 5 ME R R B R B A BT

Group

A4 M
2011 2010
“F 8 —ZF-FF
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
T#T THE T
Not past due iv A i 11 237,077 175,479
1 — 30 days past due min1E30H 18,669 27,136
31— 60 days past due i 131260 H 10,006 3,448
61 — 90 days past due % 161290 H 4,034 1,617
91 — 120 days past due W91 % 120 H 1,735 1,376
121 — 180 days past due w1215 180 H 1,357 894
181 — 360 days past due 1815360 H 1,425 421
Over 360 days past due 360 H DL - 59
274,303 210,430

The carrying amounts of trade receivables are denominated in the

following currencies:

H 5 RE R 3k 2 AR T (E DA T 81 B T (E

Group

A MR
2011 2010
R SRR
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
T FH T
RMB UL 226,529 145,705
USD e 36,574 59,153
New Taiwan dollar (“NTD”) ER=kin 10,855 5,489
HKD 5T 345 83
274,303 210,430

The carrying value of trade receivables approximated its fair

value. The Group generally allows an average credit period of

30 to 60 days to its trade customers other than major and long

standing customers with whom specific extended terms will be

agreed between the Group and the relevant counter parties.

Daphne International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS WE

24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24 BlEABE&%5EY
Group Company
A4 A 4y 7
2011 2010 2011 2010

SR DR RIE DR R R
HK$000  HK$ 000  HK$000  HK$’ 000
T T oo T#x T

Cash at banks and in hand SRATAF AR B T S 4 723,715 396,622 150 353
Deposits with banks within three FadE =M A AN

months of maturity ZRATAER 1,072,029 1,627,667 - -

1,795,744 2,024,289 150 353

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are B4 e Bl 4 S8 W) 7 IR T (B DA R %)) & M5 (E -

denominated in the following currencies:

Group Company
A 45 A2 H
2011 2010 2011 2010

e T - e S S
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Tt Twe T T

RMB YN 1,639,018 1,744,407 - -
HKD T 72,710 89,809 143 259
USD EIC 63,848 181,367 7 94
NTD B 19,894 7,625 - -
Korean Won T 244 898 - -
Others oAt 30 183 - -
1,795,744 2,024,289 150 353
As at 31 December 2011, the weighted average effective interest W B ——F+ T H=+—H » AEBEELN
rate of the Group’s bank deposits within three months of maturity By =AW A DA 2 SR AT A7 3K 2 TN HE - 241 8 [ 4 |
was 1.49% (2010: 1.31%) per annum. A (F—FAF  1.31H) o
RMB is not a freely convertible currency in the international NE AR AR A h ik o o AR 5
market. The conversion of RMB into foreign currencies and R AN e Ky BEE M A 8] K R 2B A7 o B BOR A A 2
remittance of RMB out of the Mainland China is subject to the A1 REE 7 1) KRB R 3 B R o)

rules and regulations of exchange control promulgated by the
government of the Mainland China.
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25 TRADE PAYABLES 25 © 5 AT IR

B R 2 B o AT R (6 458 I A°) B
Wt J7 2 E o & 8 (KTRE35(a)) ) BRES AT 40 °F

The ageing analysis of trade payables, including trade balances
due to related parties (Note 35(a)) by invoice date, is as follows:

Group

A4
2011 2010
—F 8 —“F-FF
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
T#T T T
0-30 days 0230H 592,334 315,781
31 -60 days 31260H 157,978 199,075
61 — 90 days 61290H 46,896 28,489
91 — 120 days 912 120H 14,650 15,416
121 — 180 days 1212180 H 3,448 6,238
181 — 360 days 181F360H 3,351 5,212
Over 360 days 360 H DA 474 7,738
819,131 577,949

26 BANK LOAN - UNSECURED

As at both 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group’s unsecured
bank loan was denominated in NTD and repayable within one

26 SAT B K — MK

L & = LAV ESS R
A AR ) 2 A SRAT B LURT & W RHE > R
AR AR o RZARAT B MR T (B B S
value. B AH A

year. The carrying value of the bank loan approximated its fair

As at 31 December 2011, the effective interest rate of the bank
loan was 2.8% (2010: 2.8%) per annum.

R oFE——F T _H=T—H  ZiTERZ
BRI R Sy A2 8 (F — AR 1 2.8JH) o
As at 31 December 2011, the Company has given guarantees W oE——AE T H =t —H o AR A
T B Ja 2 RIS — SR AT Rl 168,895,000 7T
(= F—F4 £ 199,264,000% 70) 11 2 FERATHE
HEAE O > TR E H A RS S G o

to various banks to secure general banking facilities granted
to certain subsidiaries amounting to HK$168,895,000 (2010:
HK$199,264,000) and no such facilities were utilised.
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i H K

A)

T

27 SHARE CAPITAL 27 A
Group and Company
AR [ B AR 2 )
Number of
ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each HKS$’ 000
5 IR AR 0.107 7T
ZEEREA T
Authorised: EE -
At 1 January 2010, 31 December 2010 BEE—FE——H ZE -
and 31 December 2011 TZAZtT AR =% ——% 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
TZH=1+—H
Issued and fully paid: T R
At 1 January 2010 and RoF—FE-A B R
31 December 2010 “F-FETZA=+—H 1,637,892,384 163,789
Issue of shares upon exercise of i B T HEE B AT (8 IR B AT
share options (Note (a)) (B3 (a)) 3,070,000 307
At 31 December 2011 RE-FE——F+_A=1+—H 1,640,962,384 164,096
Notes: B 5 -
(a)  During the year ended 31 December 2011, share options were exercised a ®WE_FX——F+HA=Z1T—HILFE I

by employees to subscribe for 3,070,000 shares
HKS$6.19 per share. The total proceeds were HK!

(b)
the year ended 31 December 2010.

28
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

at the exercise price of
$19,003,000.

There were no movements in the share capital of the Company during

28

and amended on 29

May 2003 and 7 December 2009 respectively, the Company may

grant share options to eligible persons including the executive

and non-executive directors, employees and consultants

employed by the Group. The share options

are generally valid

for a period of ten years and will lapse if the grantees leave the

Group before the share options are exercisable. The Group has no

legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the share

options in cash.

The total number of shares which may be is

of all share options to be granted under the s

sued upon exercise

hare option scheme

must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company

in issue on 17 June 2008, the date of approval of the refreshment

of the scheme mandate limit by shareholders of the Company

after the adoption of the share option scheme on 29 May 2003.

The Company may grant up to 163,789,238 share options,

representing 10% of the shares of the Compa

ny in issue as at the

date of refreshment of the scheme mandate limit.

99

T HE A IR B AT B % AT 0 AE 15 6. 19U JT 7R 1
3,070,000/8 A& 173 o #8103 £519,003,000%5 IC °

BWE_F-FEFT_HA=+t—HILEE . KALAHA
e AR S S AT A 52 )

VL RE i % 51 VA i Oy 7 2 B 22 £°F K
R 5

RSN FEZFHEA S H AR F
TR+ A b E R AT 2 e
ARONF N 6 B B B > AR AT R
AT 1 B B S 2 5 o
HE o O IREHEAT 001 — e By 48 Tl 457
Bl A 4 68 A T 7 4 0 R B
5 SR o S A A A AT DA
o o8, 5 1 0 R

(b)

FR 45 B IS ME 5 ) 52 o 22 4 O I A A A T (IR T
TEATZ A > AT R TR
ANATER (R EE =R A+ ILH R
I RO R | 1 8 A ) S A o o 5 | 31 3 A PR
B H) RN A BT Z210% © AL\ ]
152 163,789,238 073 i HEHE - FH 3 i 5 B s B 4%
MHEFRZE 5 H AN R T8 T R 2 10% o
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28 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 28 DIMEZS A DI ety B B i = 1
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 25 (#)
(CONTINUED)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their i ARAT I 22 I R RE B H K Hon RS AT A A
weighted average exercise prices are as follows: BEEINR
2011 2010
e e
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise share exercise share
price options price options
I HE T
FIATEE BERHESE P ATAE RO
HKS$ HKS$
It il
At 1 January w—H—H 6.23 68,125,000 - -
Granted % 8.01 3,800,000 6.23 69,625,000
Exercised frfi 6.19  (3,070,000) - -
Lapsed e 6.45  (2,780,000) 6.19  (1,500,000)
At 31 December Bt A=+—H 6.33 66,075,000 6.23 68,125,000
Details of the share options outstanding at year-end are as TAAEGE H M RAT 2 B SRS I -
follows:
Grant date Note Exercise price Number of share options
R H B 3 e i I HE 98 H
HKS$ 2011 2010
it 7t SR CFR R
27 January 2010 —E-FE-H_++LtH (a) 6.19 60,675,000 66,025,000
22 July 2010 —E-FEFEELH -+ H (b) 7.61 1,600,000 2,100,000
27 January 2011 X ——F—H=1LtH (a) 7.84 2,500,000 -
19 August 2011 ZE——FENH T ILH () 8.35 1,000,000 -
28 October 2011 “F—-—F+H A (c) 8.30 300,000 -

66,075,000 68,125,000

Notes: B 5T -

(a) Asat31 December 2011, included 32,000,000 (2010: 40,000,000) share (a) W oE—-—FE+ T H=+—H > 32,000,000 (—
options granted to directors of the Company, 15% of the share options K —FAF 1 40,000,0000) 1% T A w7 H# B 2 W
will vest on each of the five anniversary dates of the date of grant and HE > iz U ET L A H R AR R 15%
25% of the share options will vest, subject to certain performance H 25w /BEA N R EREGIF TREZE TEH
targets determined by the board of directors of the Company, on the fifth B A R > R H O A AR AR H R o

anniversary of the date of grant.
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28 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 28
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2011, included 12,000,000 share options granted to
an ex-director and consultant of the Company, 15% of the share options
will vest on each of the four anniversary dates of the date of grant and
40% of the share options will vest on the fifth anniversary of the date of
grant.

As at 31 December 2011, included 20,175,000 (2010: 21,025,000) share
options granted to employees of the Group, 20% of the share options

will vest on each of the five anniversary dates of the date of grant.

(b)  As at 31 December 2011, included 1,000,000 (2010: 1,000,000) share
options granted to an employee of the Group, one-fifth of the share
options will vest on each anniversary with the first tranche starting on 1
April 2011.

As at 31 December 2011, included 600,000 (2010: 1,100,000) share
options granted to employees of the Group, one-third of the share
options will vest on each anniversary with the first tranche starting on 1
April 2011.

(c)  Asat31 December 2011, included 300,000 share options granted to an
employee of the Group, one-third of the share options will vest on each
of the three anniversary dates of the date of grant.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted was measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The weighted average fair value of the share
options granted during the year was HK$2.88 (2010: HK$2.29)
per share option which was determined using the Binomial
Options Pricing Model with significant inputs into the model as

follows:

VI RE g5 % 53 DL B Oy 2 B B 22 A 3k
R 5 (#)

W ER——F T H=+—H > 12,000,000/3#% T
AR A S P ORI 2 R > fr i BT
DU 3R A H AR B 15% > HR40% A% ) H IR
FHAE TR A AR B B

R E -+ A =+ —H > 20,175,00003 (—
T FAF 1 21,025,00003) 12T AL B R B 2 W%
HE > Mz s B R ST TR 4F A48 B 20% -

by A F-—E+H=+—H > 1,000,0004 (—F
—ZAF 1 1,000,000 52 T AL — 28 B 2 K
HE > I ——4E U — H A E 4E iR
Hppz—-

AT ——H 1 H=1+—H > 6000000 (=%
—ZAE 1 1,100,00013) 1% T AL EE B 2 TERHE
WA T —— 4R D0 H — B R A H R =5
Z— o

() MoFE——4E+_A=+—H > 30000003 %F 4
LW — 2R B2 EIHE > R i B R =1
WA A AR = —

W I 24 R 0t

A H R T B IR 2 N PE (T 2 TR
T I IR RE 2 A PR (RN R - MR Z
W JBEARE 2 2 ST A (0 RE T 49 9 2.8 875 T (.
E A 220 0T) > Ty A A e (E
WA E > A B AR

2011 2010
A

Weighted average share price at AT H O TR 2 5
measurement date
Weighted average option exercise price TIVREST- 22 Wi IR REAT (1

Expected annualised volatility A AR AL

Weighted average risk-free rate TR i i ] 2R

Expected option life TE 1A I A

Weighted average expected TE IR 28 R
dividend yield

Expected annualised volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price over the
previous three to five years. The expected life used in the model
has been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for
the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations.

101

HK$7.92# 70 HKS$5.84¥ 7T
HK$8.01# 56 HKS$6.23#: 7T
37.26% 37.26%
2.30% 2.80%

10 years4: 10 years4F

2.39% 1.34%

T AR BE AL IR T B AR 4 R I 2 = & T 4F
Z B PR E o sz AU 2 AR T
AT P 2 B A S W R A7 R A
BAT B8 BT U
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- NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS BE H it &1

29 RESERVES 29 filt i
Group
A H M
Convertible Share-
Capital bonds ~ Warrants hased
Share redemption ~ Capital ~capifal  capitl  payment Tramslation  Merger  Statufory  Refained

premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserves  profifs Total
IRt
Tk THIEE  AREE  BARZ

RbiE  RARE  RARE ARG RARG ARG WRRE  oRRE  URRBE O REEN &
RSO0 HKSOO  HKSOWO  HKSOW  HKSOW HKSOW  HKSOM  HKSOM  HKSOM SO HKSO0
T tEr  fEr TRt TRt Tt T T T T e

(Note (a)) (Note (b))~ (Note(c))
(Bt (ko) (ko)

At January 2010 NZF-FE-J1-H 23505 2802 - WIB - - 1854 Mo K% 1925 203,109
Currency translation differences ERENEE - - - - - - §4,04 - - - §4,204
Profit appropriaions EAR - - - - - - - N N ) -
Share of an associated company’s Bl MRAL A

feserve - - - - - - 39 - 13 1) 39
Profit for the year ERRA - - - - - - - - - 595,510 595,510
Dividends ke - - - - - - - - - 8T s0Im)
Partial acquisiton and disposal R ERE A

of subsidiaries Bk - - (197) - - - - - - - (197)
Wrte-back of nclaimed dvidends B A FAURE - - - - - - - - - 2 2
Share-based payment expense DRBAERZFHET - - - - - RS - - - )
Transfer of warrants from ARERAEETER

liability to equity - - - SR K11 - - - - -3
At31 December 2010 BEZ-TEFZAZT-H 4305 288 97 %078 I I 2975 M BN 21807 296054
Currency translation differences KRENZE - - - - - - 140 - - - 138
Profit appropriations BHAR - - - - - - - - 15,163 (15,163) -
Share of an associated company’s El-HEEAdRE

reserve - - - - - - 151 - 12 (12) 151
Profit or the year EngA - - - - - - - - - OB 93306
Dividends ke - - - - - - - - - (3Ll0g) 3100
Write-back of unclaimed dividends BHARRRE - - - - - - - - - | |
Share-based payment expense DR AR fER - - - - - ool - - - - ool
Transfer upon lapse o share options AR e s - - - - - (2456) - - - 2456 -
Isse ofshares upon exercise R RER S R

of share options JANA] - - - - (6,827) - - - - 18,096
At31 December 2011 St 5 B e 1 288 19 611 3330 95367 44 n 98503 2820046 387L7MN
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29 RESERVES (CONTINUED) 29 M (%)

Company
Y. /N

Convertible Share-

Capital bonds ~ Warrants based

Share redemption Contributed capital capital Translation ~ payment  Retained
premium  reserve  surplus  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total
MR B
Tk THREF AR B

RS WREEG  SARR  EARE  EARE  BERRE  MARE  REEN it
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HKS'000
Tx  Tkx  THx  THx 0 TEx  Tikx  TEx  TEx  T#x
(Note (2))  (Note (d))
(M) (k)

At 1 January 2010 REF-FE-]-0 24,505 2880 152801 26,178 - 2,003 - 9458 217917
Currency translation differences & B 5 % - - - - - 3,604 - - 3,694
Profit for the year A - - - - - - - 187984 187984
Dividends 35! - - - - - - - (180,173)  (180,173)
Write-back of unclaimed B SR &

dividends - - - - - - - 2 2
Share-based payment expense DURf Bv e 2 3 - - - - - - 58,589 - 58,589
Transfer of warrants from AR R

liability to equity 4 - - - - 3633 - - - 3633
At31 December 2010 BER-FELZAZT-0 4305 2880 1281 26178 363370 5697 83 17271 651383
Currency translation differences & W [E i % - - - - - 14,659 - - 14,659
Profit for the year A - - - - - - - 051031 251031
Dividends 35! - - - - - - - (231,106)  (231,106)
Write-back of unclaimed BRI &

dividends - - - - - - - 1 1
Share-based payment expense DR B3 B 2 B 5 - - - - - - 46,061 - 46,061
Transfer upon lapse of i B

share options - - - - - - (2,456) 2456 -
Issue of shares upon exercise of  F 77 [ RERF B 17 T

share options 25,503 - - - - - (6,827) - 18,696
At31 December 2011 REF-—FFZA=t-0 5008 2880 152801 26178 30330 2035 95367 39653 750725
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29 RESERVES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Daphne International Holdings Limited

BOR W

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve represents the nominal amount of shares
repurchased by the Company in 1999.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the subsidiaries at the date on
which they were acquired by the Company and the nominal amount
of the share capital issued by the Company as consideration for the
acquisition pursuant to the corporate reorganisation in 1995.

Statutory reserves

As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the Company’s
subsidiaries established and operated in Mainland China are required
to appropriate a portion of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior
year losses) to the statutory reserves and enterprise expansion fund, at
rates determined by their respective boards of directors. The statutory
reserves can be utilised to offset prior year losses or be utilised for the
issuance of bonus shares, whilst the enterprise expansion fund can be
utilised for the development of business operations. When the statutory
reserves reach an amount equal to 50% of the registered capital of the
Company’s subsidiaries, further appropriation is optional.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
between the aggregate net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the
Company under the corporate reorganisation in 1995 and the nominal
amount of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition.

Distributable reserves

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its owners of
the Company comprise share premium, contributed surplus, fair value
adjustment of warrant capital reserve, translation reserve, share-based
payment reserve and retained profits. Under the Companies Law
(Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of the Company
is available for paying distributions or dividends to owners subject
to the provisions of its Articles of Association and provided that
immediately following the distribution or the payment of dividends, the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business. The share premium may also be distributed in the form of
fully paid bonus shares. In accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association, dividends shall be payable out of the profits or other

reserves, including the share premium, of the Company.
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29 fii i (%)
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)
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JBe 53 i 80 TP A 160 AN 20 R S A B, - 2
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

30 CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND WARRANTS

On 12 June 2009, the Company issued unlisted and unsecured
RMB denominated USD settled convertible bonds due in 2014
(the “Bonds”) and unlisted warrants to subscribe 100 million new
shares of the Company (the “Warrants”) in an aggregate principal
amount of RMB550,000,000.

The terms of the Bonds and the Warrants are summarised below:

(a) the Bonds bear interest of 3.125% per annum on the
outstanding principal amount of the Bonds and the interests
are payable by the Company semi-annually in arrears;

(b) the Bonds are convertible at the option of the bondholders
into fully paid ordinary shares on or after the issue date
of the Bonds up to 12 June 2014 at a conversion price of
HK$3.50 per share, subject to certain adjustments pursuant
to the terms of the agreement entered with the bondholders;

(¢) 178,510,572 conversion shares will be issued upon full
conversion of the Bonds based on the initial conversion
price of HK$3.50 per share;

(d) the Bonds are redeemable on maturity at a value equal to the
USD equivalent of the aggregate of 100% of the outstanding

RMB principal amount and all amounts accrued thereon;

(e) the exercise price of the Warrants is HK$4.00 per warrant
and it is denominated at RMB3.49792 per warrant pursuant
to the amendment deed dated 25 August 2010; and

(f) the Warrants can be exercised at any time during the period
commencing from the issue date of the Warrants up to 12
June 2014.

At the issuance of the Bonds, a liability component representing
the 5-year 3.125% straight debt and an equity component
representing the convertible option of HK$3.50 per share were
recognised at fair value. Upon issuance of the Warrants, a
derivative financial instrument was recognised at fair value. On
25 August 2010, upon the execution of an amendment deed by the
Company with the warrant holder to fix the exercise price of the
Warrants at RMB 3.49792 per warrant, the derivative financial
instrument was derecognised and the carrying amount of it was

transferred to warrants capital reserve.
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B H B

30 F] R 1E I B wB I hE

WZERIFEANHTZH > RN FEEBIT AR
FHESETTA E N T ARSI 2 JE T R dE
JEM TR RS S ([E5 ) KT E%looooo 000

JBEAS 28 T 37 e 43y 2 FF b T wR ERE RS ([ BRI HE
w5 1) > A4 4% 55550,000,000 A\ R o

R 5 e i BOHERE 2 e B an T

(a) ﬁ#i‘*ﬂ%f‘ﬁi‘ﬁ%zﬁ/ﬁﬁﬁuE%Uﬁ&ns@%
B oo R AR A ALE

(b) fEFFEA AR IR AT H R E
F—P4EN A+ H 1B 4% i 5 123,50
5T (A AR SR KA AN BT RT S ik 2 ik

AR A5 TR ) SR E I B O AU
Hx ;

(¢) T He ) S0 M8 45 A 3. 509 ToE R B
Wt H5 8517178,510,572 1% 5o 3 B4y

(d) % 5 AT 3] U IR e A 1 R e AR
W G B 21009 Mo 4 508 JRE 5 3 TE 48 A0 48
(B 2 26 05 (H 4 R e
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- NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

30 CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND WARRANTS

31

Daphne International Holdings Limited

(CONTINUED)

Movements of the liability component of the Bonds are as
follows:

i H K

A)

=117

30 ] e e I B B b (A

Rz AR BT

Group and Company

PN 7 N
2011 2010
“E - DR FF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T THETT
At 1 January w—H—H 556,622 515,625
Exchange adjustment [FE 5, 34 4 24,506 19,155
Interest expense FE B 2 24,751 21,842
At 31 December wt=H=+—H 605,879 556,622

During both years ended 31 December 2011 and 31 December
2010, no Bonds were redeemed, converted or purchased and

cancelled and no Warrants were exercised.

LICENSE FEE PAYABLES

License fee payables were recognised based on a discount rate
of approximately 20% per annum on the minimum guaranteed
amount at the date of inception of the obligation, which was
determined by reference to the Group’s weighted average cost of
capital.

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, all license fees
were payable in one to five years from the balance sheet date and
the carrying value of the license fee payables approximated its
estimated fair value.
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32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 32 R P i B
Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary P AT T A5 TR ) B 08 025 it W 2 A i R B R
differences under the liability method using the applicable tax (= G
rates.
The movement in net deferred income tax assets is as follows: RIS LG A S H T -
Group
A4 M
2011 2010
e N 5
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
F#x THTT
At 1 January Hw—H—H 51,217 38,569
Exchange adjustment T 5, 38 % 2,842 1,514
Credited to profit and loss account FPABE AR (R0
(Note 10) 32,965 11,134
At 31 December wrZH=+—H 87,024 51,217
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss to be AN F NG T A B TR R 48 e R 0 4 T A5
carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the related P& E - MELVE B BIEIR ] feis il H R 2
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. As at MEBL A ERE LR - N - F——F+_H
31 December 2011, the Group has unrecognised tax losses of =4 H > A A T 4 B R AR 2 R I
HK$89,770,000 (2010: HK$129,077,000) to be carried forward A8 2 A il RR B JE RS $5189,770,000%5 7T (%
against future taxable income, including HK$4,968,000 (2010: — 4 1 129,077,000% 76) > £ 454,968,000
HK$53,945,000) and HK$67,577,000 (2010: HK$68,522,000) I (- —F4 : 53,945,0004570) 67,577,000
that will expire within the next five years and in five to ten years, WG (F—FAF 1 68,522,000%5 70) 43 [l A K
respectively. RAAE N J L E AR -
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- NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS B H Bt

32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 32 BB (H)

AN R SE R JE A N B (FE R] — OB Rk
I 2 &5 BRAK S A ) 2 BB T

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior to
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction)
during the year are as follows:

Group
K%M
Deferred income Decelerated tax
tax assets Provisions depreciation Tax losses Others Total
JERE i B K i WHBESE A H Jiie At
2011 2010 W01 2010 2011 2010 011 2010 011 2010
e i e e e e e =
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS 000
T#n  THx  T#x  TEx  TEx  Tdx  TEx THx  TEx  TEx
At January =H-H 48957 35,185 4,366 5,839 2,305 - 260 44 56,388 41,466
Exchange adjustment HE SR 2,381 1411 28 179 456 60 n 1 3,082 1,661
Credited/(charged) toprofit ~ #F A/ (B 1)
and loss account Bik 29,129 12,3601 543 (1,152) 16,579 2045 748 (193) 46999 13,261
At 31 December ‘EZAZ1-8 80,467 48957 5,627 4,366 19,340 2305 1,035 20 106469 56,388
Group
KA
Deferred income tax Accelerated tax Withholding tax on
liabilities depreciation undistributed profits Others Total
JEAE i 5 B £ i B AR B B B b At
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
B T I i i o i e e e It S e L
HK$°000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$' 000
Ti#n T Ti#n T Tt T Tt Tt
At 1 January —=HA—H 4,404 2,897 560 - 07 - 5111 2,897
Exchange adjustment T 5.7 % 226 141 - - 14 6 240 147
Charged to profit and Mk ARG R
loss account 1,689 1,366 12,087 560 258 201 14,034 2,127
At 31 December REZA=+—H 6,319 4,404 12,647 560 479 207 19,445 5171
Daphne International Holdings Limited 108

B OW OB OB ERAER A



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

33 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

B H B -

3B HEABEWREER

STATEMENT
Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash generated from W T 45 38 i 280 ) B/ 7 4R 2 B 2 IR
operations
2011 2010
R e
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T#u T# T
Profit before income tax W BT 15 T 22 A 1,322,081 850,161
Amortisation 5 8,254 8,564
Depreciation e 177,602 133,656
Fair value loss on derivative financial A A= 4 BN PR (B R 18
instrument — warrants — TR R - 77,328
Fair value loss on available-for-sale AL e il A
financial assets B A(E R 1R 61,872 -
Loss on disposal of fixed assets B [ R 2 1R 13,558 12,392
Interest income LS WA (63,143) (37,151)
Finance costs Ft B A 46,907 44,799
Share-based payment expense DB 2 R B 2 A5 K B 3 46,061 58,589
Net write-back on termination of H& 1l A RE
a license right G TRER ] - (9,493)
Share of profit of an associated company & At — [H] i % /3 w] 2 Al (421) (618)
Operating cash flows before working R B AR 2
capital changes G Ty 1,612,771 1,138,227
Increase in inventories & 38 m (928,227) (103,823)
Increase in trade receivables, other B 5 E WO R~ A R AR K
receivables, deposits and prepayments iz & T FEAT R TG (470,270) (106,164)
Increase in trade payables, other B MEAT K~ H A A K
payables, accrued charges and other JRET A B At
non-current liabilities IE I B & 395,672 228,410
Cash generated from operations R E A 2 BlE 609,946 1,156,650
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- NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

34 COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments for purchase of land use

(a) W H A b5 ORE % B B R 2 B A

rights and fixed assets 75 I
Group
AR
2011 2010
SEoE CFE
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
T AR
Authorised but not contracted B REH R ET A 172,493 13,246
Contracted but not provided for S EORER S 20 26,823 25,679
199,316 38,925

(b) Commitments under operating leases

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments in respect of various production

plants and facilities, warehouses, offices and distribution

(b) BWEMERIE

RZF—— 4+ =+ —H > AEE
LA E R K A A E R
B MG 2 AN T TR A8 B 2 R A B AR A

outlets under non-cancellable operating leases as follows: BT -

Group

A M
2011 2010
e
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T T#IT
Not later than one year — A 1,044,885 686,065
Later than one year and not later than five years — AR RN 1,225,781 703,016
Later than five years HAER 46,586 30,941
2,317,252 1,420,022

Payment obligations in respect of operating leases on
properties with contingent rent vary with respect to
gross revenues are not included as future minimum lease

payments.

The Company did not have any material commitments as at
31 December 2011 (2010: nil).
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS WE

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 35 PR JT R 5 B &G
BALANCES
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere RS B H At 50 00 0 9% o5 2 28 57 SR &G R > AR
in these accounts, the Group entered into the following related A N A A AT N AN B T sc S

party transactions during the year:

(a) Transactions and balances with related companies (a) HEEA ¥ 2R 5 KGR
Transactions Balance at year end
5 ARG B Z B R
2011 2010 2011 2010

SRR ORI DR R R
HK$’000  HK$ 000  HK$7000  HKS$ 000
T# 5t T#IC T# T T#C

Purchases and subcontracting ]~ 41 & 5 BRI

services from: A R

An associated company — MW N 1,196 2,218 134 806

Investee companies AR E N T 17,659 2,519 7,191 590
Purchases of shoe materials and footwear from the ] Wt 4% N E) Sp w5 A N 1 BRI ) R
associated company and investee companies, were T BB S R AR H o ERE AR
conducted in the normal course of the Group’s business. WEAT o GG T SRS AL H BA A8 5 7 o o E
The terms of transactions were determined and agreed BT > WA MEAT &5 B IR B’ B 6k
between the Group and the counter parties and all balances AT e

due were repayable according to trade terms.

(b) Key management personnel compensation b)) TEESHMABZHM

2011 2010
e
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T#t THETT
Salaries, allowances and bonuses Fra o HHE RAEAL 96,843 42,507
Defined contribution pension costs & B {1 3R AR 4 A 150 321
Share-based payment expense DB 2 HE B 2 A5 R B 3 35,873 44,193
132,866 87,021
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- FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY T A A B L

For the years ended 31 December
BEFA=+—HILHEE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
SR CECRE CFTUE CFRAE CERLE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

T T T T T T T T
Results ES
Turnover B 8,576,762 6,623,840 5,831,994 5,289,297 3,853,580
Gross profit TH 5,243,777 3,800,841 3,207,078 2,787,386 1,829,779
Profit before income tax ik i 15 1 282 1,322,081 850,161 633,543 666,267 530,018
Profit for the year PLTR & 7 AL 4R T
attributable to: BA 944,731 611,611 400,659 497,177 388,720
Owners of the Company E/NEIE: ZEWN 933,063 595,510 393,838 492,920 384,383
Non-controlling interests T iV E i 11,668 16,101 6,821 4,257 4,337
Basic earnings per share B AR A Gl
(HK cents) 56.96 36.36 24.05 30.09 23.47
Dividend per share (HK cents)  AF B BEE (Al 17.0 12.0 8.0 5.5 5.0
As at 31 December
B+-H=+—H
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
TR ZEFFE ZEFNE ZEFFNE ZEFRLE
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
Tt THIT T TH#TT TH#TT
Assets and liabilities EE kAR
Total assets MR 6,501,416 5,049,050 3,940,808 2,962,361 2,361,901
Total liabilities AR 2,269,790 1,741,447 1,698,883 1,071,063 954,719
Total equity attributable to: AR 4 77 JE A AR £ 4,231,626 3,307,603 2,241,925 1,891,298 1,407,182
Owners of the Company Z/NIE XS DN 4,035,867 3,124,332 2,202,898 1,854,533 1,373,084
Non-controlling interests T e il PV E 45 195,759 183,271 39,027 36,765 34,098
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